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Powering Business Worldwide

Eatorr rued versifreu power anagement compar proviurng

energy eftcrent solutiorrs that help our customers effectively

ange electncal hydraulic and mechanical power With 2012

sa es of $16.3 Ilion Eaton is global technology eader in electr

oducts systems and serv ces for power quality distribut on and

control powur transmission lightirg ard wiring products hydrau cs

components systems and serv es for industna and mob le

equ pment aerospace fuel hydraulics and pneur lat systems for

commercial and
litary use and truck and automotive dr vetra

and powertrain systs ms for performance fuel economy and safety

Eaton acquued Coopor Industries plc in 2012 has approx

mate 103 000 nployees ard tel pioducts to customers more

than 175 countries For more information visit ww eaton corn
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EATON
Eatons electrical business has long been pioneer in power

management with focus on power distribution for utilities

residential and non-residential construction power quality for

data centers and IT markets and electrical control for machine

builders and the factory floor Our service business delivers

energy-efficient solutions to wide range of energy users

TOGETH ER
MORE POWERFUL

COOPER
For 180 years Cooper has been leader in providing world-

class electrical and safety products for industrial utility

commercial and residential markets Its systems engineering

division helped pioneer major breakthroughs in electrical

distribution and safety

With the acquisition of Cooper the largest

in our 101 year history we are beginning

new era of accelerated growth and

change at Eaton This is transformative

step By bringing together two exceptional

companies both with extraordinary talent

we are creating power management
powerhouse and are positioning ourselves

for even greater success today and well

intothefuture



2012 Financial Highlights
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YEAR
To Our Shareholders

around the worki many peope

forces they consider beyond

Just two years ago we celebrated our 100r annversary payng

thbute to generahons of employees whose rolonhess ingonuity

and passionate spirit have made Eaton one of the worDs

leading power management companies Over that proud history

we demonstrated time and again that the only way to succeed

is to maintain bold course regardless of economic conditions

and to contnuously transform our busness to adapt to changirrg

markets and customer needs

During 2012 we sustained that strategy by acquning Cooper

Industnes plc company with heritage that is as nch as our

ovvnand history of accomplishments that dates back even

furthec The $13 billion acquisitionthe largest weve ever

accomplishedis transformational milestone that expands

the electrical solutions we can offer to customers strengthens

our capabilities in growing market segments including of and

gas mining data centers arrd utilities and increases our

presence irr key geographic regions

Im pleased to welcome Coopers shareholders and employees

with this letter and weve dedicated this years annual report

to exploring the myriad opportunities that our combined

businesses have already begun to pursue Together we truly

do make powerful cornbnationa combination that Im

confident will continue to transform our business in many ways

for years to come

Delivenng strong returrs in soft economy

While 2012 began with great promise global economes

sputtered during the second half of the year deflating many of

our end markets In fact our errd markets shrank by percent

during the fourth quartermore than twice the decline we

expected Despite this weakness we contnued to post solid

financial results arrd deliver strong returns to Eatons shareholders

Among the years financial and operating highlights including

one month of results from the Cooper acquisition whch we
closed orr November 30

We posted record sales of $167 billion up percent

from 2011

Net income per share fell 12 percent to $376 due in large

part to acquisition integration and restructuring costs

incurred during the year

We generated $17 billion in cash fronr operations and

increased our dividend by 12 percent

We contributed $413 million to our pension plans strengthem

ing our balance sheet

We completed five acquisitions three new electrical busi

nesses Cooper Rolec Comercial Industrial SA and

Cycoms low-voltage power distribution husiness and two

new hydraulics businesses Polimer Iauguk Sanay ye Pazar

lama A$ which manufactures hoses under the SEL brand

and Jeil Hydraulics Co Ltd

EATON 2012 Annuai Report
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don ciçiriificantly larger

arot nd the world

We trengthened our co in tr lent to sustainabi ity leadership

by reducng our greenhouse gas em ss ons waste to landf

antI water conqumotion wh le expandina our efforts to bu Id

better safer and stronger workplaces and communities

We
.i

iched global Zero Incident Safety Cu tureto further

engage ir employees and to strergtl en our safety process

reduc our nurr bar of severn njur es by 17 percent from the

prcviots yoar

nety six percert of ou workforce part patod in our global

emp oee survey demcnstrating cot nued strong emp oyee

engagement

Our stock attained ew record ghs dur ng 2012 rot the

year the value of Eaton shares fncluding quarterly vidends

increased by 19 percent compared to gains of ao percent for we

Dow Jon 35 ndustnal averago 16 percent for the SliP 500 and

percent tor the Nasdaq ompos te index Since 2000 Eaton

stock has do ivered stror 14 percent compounded annua

tot shareholder retum

As part our acquisition of Cooper were ncorporated oui

company Ireland Eaton continues to trade on the Nev York

Stock Exchange under the tcker symbo ETN

Maintainmg balanced business suategy

Lator significant argei and far different company

today then we were only years ago dnven by the strong

growth of our ectnca hidrat hcs and aerospace businesses

at pie charts on page Sjnce 2000 revenues from these

bus nesses have nearly tripled while revenues from our vehic

isinesses are up just under 10 percent

Our acquisition of Cooper accelerates that evol ition establish

ng Lator as one of the worlds largest electrical compan es

Renowned Cooper franchues such as Ciouse nds and

Together these

businesses will

now generate

more than 80

percent of our

revenues

Bussmanr fort fy our expertise and expand our powerhouse

portforo of electrica product nes that now includes

Cutler Hammer Holec Powerwar Moeller Phoen flec

McGraw Edison Ky Halo and many more

As result we be ieve weve never been better pos toned to

focus our efforts on attractive groMh opportunities wh lo

mainta ning strateg ca ly diversif ed ix of bus nesses Gorq

forward we estimatr

Our electr ca business II generate approx mate 60 percent

of our annual sales con pa ed to only 29 percent n2000

More than 80 percent of our annua sales wi be generated

by our combined electncal hydraulics and aerospace

buinesses th the balance of our sales genorated by

our vohic bus ness

Ha of our revenues wil be generated outsde of the

compared to only 70 percent in 2000 This projection

sightly lower than our 2011 and 2017 results bectuse iota

of Coopers sales are currently based

This diversification of our bus nesses both across geographies

and buiness cycles continues to help us balance the

variab lity and volati ity that nhere it manag ng globa

ndustna company Dur ng 2012 tot examp stror

commerc and residental sales the Amencas enabled our

electncal business to achieve recard revenues and prof ts

despite weakness European and Asia Pacific markets

Modest growth in our luydrau ics and aerospace busi iessos

helped offset decl nes in automo ive and truck Read more ir

our opo ating hig iFghts on page

To reflect he evolufon of our company we will begin report ig

our financial rosults 2013 using the follow ng five bus ness

segments electrica products ctca systems and services

hydraul cs aerospace and veh

and far differentcompanytoday

th we were only 12 years ago

driven by the strong growth of our

electrical hydraulics and aerospace

businesses and our rapid expansion

EATON 2012 Ant ual Report
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Our businesses are balanced through the economic cycle

No cycle

t2lb revc Es

Fe trw ncr

de cc at or
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Late cycle
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ermpacs ut Fe

oar icr ta str Uo

reed ton

Creating our own growth in an unertain environment

oW economics dec er ted is cc ogressed rrough 2012

idrr tour other year of sub par orov We don expect that

veer rn to cl ange dr mat ca ye 20 as the Eurozor

struuqles with cha leng ng sea ar reor etaFy dens uris the

rc rca ns captrve to It pressures of sca is balance and

en rig nahor orco the soure of stro growth

ortnue hersowrebourd

As rem cur ccor oWe out ook for 2013 fec mud ike dde

year ago mt en wrote some Is te aced wilt sub

trcr ohs ecor on cg owtt co par os ust create the

over groWl confider if hr act en our team oc

012 ive mdy pu us so id or that cm me

WF be rye ou acquis tin of Cooper add approx mate

$38 bilcnoour2013r verues.By2016webe eve

the Coupor ocquis tier WI mate fOb ci or annua

pro tax ope ational sync glen arid an addt orral $160 ra 11cr

or nual after tax synerg en cast manageriierrt arid

result tax bend ts

Ou acqu tions of floe Gycun Pb riier Kauguk SELl and

Je cvi add another $20 Iii lion to oar 2013 reverrues ar

create new oppo tur ten to us atfrac We kets

We ave cor nued our iqgressve vestments new

produc arid ted nolog es arid tF steady strear of norm

produc ar services manat ng fro these ir veStn erts

cor ti iues to dr ye prem ii growth opo cur Cs

lo respc nd to coral re inc oft rnarcet ndt cnn part ularly

Lurope we restructure sorsnl daced or coned several of

uur arufact ir rig fac It cc reduc rug future costs

Wf thr Cooper acqu sit deriiand sigr cant iage

air and financia resourcm for tf next severe years

pieased tu report tl at ir trprat on pie nak ed of swedule

Early cycle

.c6 cc eve cc

icc

iq p1 iso iwe crc ft

ci rita

Mid cycle

1t54b cc

yJ sur cc

etur dftt

Jsirc Ir cc

do vering ante than expected oft cer icc ocr pp

arid wl ing gcr era iid ad ci sraf vo cxpe ices do ma so

ahc ad of in in tr mc cf on cast ow gener at ab ft

repay debt As rrnu ccc be eve if Coder acQusto ice

be ac ret no to rigs 2013 ft year ahead of crig

project on During our oultIr quarte conference call we

ssued qc rdance of $4.05 to $445 op mit ng ea gs pm share

for 2013 wb ct wo ill estab sh ew record tor cci ccc rs

eve ct ie og er or

war to sa ute assoc des cc cit to cv arid

st even tbre face of ur cor ta ieir cc rage to or tr cc to

ovate to dopt ar exp crc nevx cor ret ts and tc so ye

eustc morn cv cys tru ace abe Not cc tatrg

ways rnuv forward cr st riients cad if

every day are tru mp ccc vc rave seerr tI same uu

ge us coo rrarfrrrer from theta errted leades ar assuc tes of

Cooper Ir dust es cceat rig dyr ii cc rono cr1 ft govnth

While strong our to rr cc id our cc terprrse is

tern pored by our recogn ton that we have so riuci to

nip eve arid acco rip
sh Eatcrr iransforriiat on ml orrt cc

fueled by ur va cc based culturc arid our eustorerers grom rig

derriand fcrr sae ib en and susd abc powe

anager or cit ons We mc cc va es very day are

prepared to once again rmake tli anr ucl pledge to cur

sl arel oldurs We are ic mc tto to Dci ig is ess Rig

On beha of cur er ro Eaton learn thar you for yr ur

continued support

Aexar dorM Cutler

Cl irar c0 Lxecutrve Of cc
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Through our acqus ton of Cooper weve gnif cantly expsnded

our capabil ties with itt ovedap or dup cation the so utior

we prey do are complementary and adjacent to one anothe

listor ca ly Eatons core bus tess focused pr manly or

lac hUes powe distrihut on and powur oual ty moving pews

to and throughou the aces where we ye ard we Coopers

product po ff010 allows us to move upstream irCto uti ty

dstribut or grid automation arid itart gr systems and

downstrea nto ight ng ghtirtg controls md ng dcv ces

Enormous mtegration potential

This perfect fit between ocr two companies means that we

can now offer cc storners far more comprohe ye and

integrated olutions to the powe management cha lenges

from the po nt of generatiort to the poi it of conaun Pt on It so

substantia ncreases the size of our electr ca busiress tota

sales in 2012 of Eatons ectr cal business and Cooper topped

$13 bill on giving us tt sca to del vet those so ut or to

more markets and geographies

Our businesses comp ement each other strateg cally

organizational too

Were tocuseo on miny of the sunie key it is kvts ucund rg

tL and gas industry mining data centers enemy oft

ency md alternat ye energy

We have eading solutiors in the markets we serve and

we re both growirug strongly urganical and th ough

acquisit ott

We have comp ementary histor cc cc Itures arid inciples

inc an unuvering comm tment to ott cs ness

integr ty and solvi ig our customers problems

Merging our talents to fuel innovation

Both of oui companies have strong research and development

teams arid histories of nnovation creafng portfo io of

patented technolog es tha give us art edge compet ye

markets Among the many recogn tions we ye earned

Ito nson Reuters named Eaton its fop 100 Innovators List to

the second coisecutvc year 2017 The Patent Board na tted

Cooper the No ir novator the idustrial compuner ts arrd

fixtures category lust one year pr or

By cornbirring our talents we plan to deve op new solute is

br our cusomers includ ng expanding our portfol of nart

grid oroducts ar techno epics market that the tric

Power Research Institute est rtates wi average $11 11011 to

$24 bi lior anrua ly
the tlonc for the next 20 years

It iCr

CCC tC CJ

Ci CCC

UPStREAM

ti
TI

hr

it Cl

it

Ct
it

rPC

OWl
Ci Ci

CC CC CC

it

Ct IC

Ull

Ct

IC CC ut

CtU CP

IC tu

MIDS1 RE AM

DOWNSTRE AM

EATON 2012 Anniai Reporl 11



OUR OPPORTUNmES
Oct iu astor it scoft plot td soft ors to

rr or nt it oh copes raFt or in rid vidu
pi

oducts

OS Fda portic hr trq au ii co pan

or va amp es project acquisidon

wooer wt be she to part cipa or qieatcr urribor of ho

proj iFhpFy np ou opporh qrr si

Fort0 htpovac aidosanpof rc

roar it sy cm ed bft op ou ro rrparucs

vOl oL iF on and tno it oo in ira tOt

duslry ye pr wide to orrf products ext cr1

hoc per or ist id safety produr to to

cmi rorpy cor rpanies wF crc Eato or cc qt

bE rir pov or diotribut cor ho pow qua ty 0r

no coo

or ro ran now ri to ic pp or to ftc oi

rot dr dooiqn rrqn iq id oirs rot

f1 it F-ash 10 oxa rpFc vvo re oh op ahi co

clpht idor cot the Farpcst oratedOl mw roapi ot

alE wc oh jo ye iro

1r oppsrtur tca or

xa Fe opors otci ctronrj do ivori ig owe
ib so ions to ml ci eis ow ow to

F-ut rip ft ator swrtchqc md otlre roduct ft ito

ea icr orov in nterr iotiby owe systci

ci rp av or 0o lion to dot itora CiOc fl

pp it in iorkc hoop Ft ut 10 osurco cot

par it rita uj curS

id mgi rv and tnbu

mgi it and iou
rip pi oop ie of is or

0100 z0 emcu tc puvvc iyoir

rpiloa OldaoitoFcF oqcosorncrafv yptast ito

ye Ito cyc 5ltr dos coi strr ctior arid

rt Wt now hc ibIs 00 fer ti so wry cc
do array ote ma ora or0 he to stro ips

ct ps or Vol ott it or ito id sot dir

sort woft

ma ii oopor dctr hrt oF or wr esr

Ia md ott ft rs 0so go 01 tea wift

ovdoof miito0tosetect oyxpa ddistubrto ir

pr to rr it sari

Co apw cole pp es 1o roy

ic0 yroqitswtfiifa crtfeistrorptfei apoi

cprbi too to ust ier Fri tc arc qas omot fo

ip hydra iF us ier pr lvi Ic ood cry

or udu ip irrq ip arid ma ma har

yv ob oa qu1pro ci iCo it of cii my coo

Or or yorauti so iF ott or SOi Or

nc id hydr 00 00 tb or porte

LA ONSOIUTF

vi

Ic 11

FNLb IE

1mg

12 EATON 2ir Annuvi Sri



EATON 2012 Annua Report 13



14 EATON 2012 ni Hepoi



Urn or

odrng ohor of unno

nrc id font

burl in rpjlic dl rd

lot ntrnls P1 VIdE

It Oh rh al In It

Pu ft ii Il hr pro in

to rc inc ndinq Pin to

Ut of ni duct poll4

lou on tr tochtlco

nn hO ri

f0OO8l Phoenix cc Lop

rn cod too ir It td rohp

Sr idno of lIt

hOrn of on

oft rn opo xtr ivc

rrq cxp tot ond

ff Tt tn
hi

NDING
For more than decade we have focused on building the

breadth and depth of our electrical business Weve achieved

this throug combination of organ growth and strategic

acquisitions arrd divestitures each expanding our portfolio of

solutions and geograph redch he long term plan has included

the purchase of 32 electrica businesses since 2000 ncluding

several pivotal acquisitions see exaro pIes at left

Getting the best from both businesses

Eatons track record for successful acquisit ens starts by

selecting the right companies that can help us expand our

portfolio employ new technologies enter new markets and

leverage valuable business models But our success is based

equal err our dsciplned integration process whick has been

continuously refined with each acouisitiorr weve made

Our rrtegration of Cooper will tel ow the same blueprint Using

the baton Business Systenr as its foundat on team from Cooper

and Eaton is developirrg and executir gout integration plar

br nging together best practices frori both organizations While

our acquisit on of Cooper delivers roar ir mediate ber ef ts we
antic pate that fully integrating our two compan Cs wi require

two to three years depend ng on business cond tior

Rolec expands our potential in South AmericLa

During 2012 we also acqu red Rolec Comercia Industra S.A

headquartered in Santiago Ch Ic Rolec provides engineer ng

services and manufactures nteqrated power assembles and

low and mediumwoltage swtchgear used in mining pcrlp and

paper errergy infrastructure and of icr heavy industry appl

cat ens in Cli Ic and Peru he acqcisitior while significantly

smaller than Cooper in size offers many of the same strategic

benefits ncluding expansion into target markets and

geographies Rolec also creates new opportunities to ma ket

Eaton and Coope products in the reg on
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By acquirirrg Cooper we build on both companies successes by

substantial growng our globa scale reach and the range of

electrical products and services we can offer to customers Jtris

riclordes curl lb liii uui strengths to expand om opportunities

luIgh the Middle East China South Korea and Australia
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STRENGTH EN NG
OUR COMMITMENT
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energy recovery

More than 200 regulatory inspections

were conducted at our faci hes during

2012 Coflectively our global opera

hens had two reportable spits of regu

lated ndustnal matenals aL eve the

reportable quantity limits rd 23

events that exceeded wastewater per

mit limits Through further ightening

of our controls we aim to iminate

future exceedancos

Dunng the year we revised the waste workplace
generated data we report tram total

waste generated to total waste to land

ff1 which we believe is truer measure

of Eatons environmental pact We also have sirnphfied our

Sustainab lity Scorecard pages 19 arrd 20 to make it easier for

readers to evaluate our lone term performance and future goals

EarthCon Consultants Inc an independent environmental ser

vices company examined cur data co lechon and management

processet and verified thece data are both materially correct

and fa rly represented The approximately 180 global facfities

that compose our inventory meet the following criteria

Add value to products or hardware including rnanufactunng

assemt 1mg integration and test ng

Have more than 50 employees or high risk profile deter

mined by group or regional MIS teams

Have been affiliated wit Eaton for more than three years

Our HS data do not include the operations of Cooper which we

acquired ri late 2012 We aim to integrate Coopers operations

for its outstanding performance

Coopers most recent Corporate

Responsibility Report was published

in 2010 for the year 2009

Notable 2012 EHS progran ar ci

stx.cess stor

We strengthened our commitment

to renewable energy during 2012

purchasing 15000 metric tons of

Green carbon offset credts in

Germany and Nnrth America which

we will expand to approximately

25000 metric tons in 2013 We also

commissioned 288kW solar power

system at the new Eaton Center in

Beachweed Ohio and working with

an energy solutions company com
missioned new megawatt and

172 kW solar systems at our facilties

in Moon Townsh and Beaver Pennsylvania respectively

Eaton Center which opened in February 2013 is designed

to certification standards The innovative facility

features many Eaton and Cooper products as well as

neve FIVAC system which will reduce the buildirmgs energy

use by 40 percent compared to baseline building that

meets minimum code

We had two additiena facilities achieve zero waste to landfil

in 2012 for total of 20 Eaton facilities around the globe

We wil apply the lessons learned from these operations to

continue to reduce our total waste to landfill and increase our

number of zero waste facil ties in future years

During 2012 we launched gleba Zero Incident Safety

Culture to help iriminate safety inciderrts at our faclities

and create an even safer and more productive workplace

It included now programs to bettor identify and mitigate

to percent en an abso ute basis and reduce water consumption into our MESH IManagement System of Environment Secu

by percent which is equivalent to percent en an absolute ty Safety and Health program in 2013 and in our 2014 Sus

basis We also aim to reduce our Recordable Case Rate to tainability Report published in 2015 Cooper has long history

0.80 and Days Away Case Hate to 28 of environmental workplace and social responsibility and has

Our goals for 2015 Ia indexed to sales reduce GHG emissions
been recognized by numerous independent organizations

by 25 percent reduce waste to

Iandfil by 30 percent and reduce

water consumption by 20 ercent

defines waste to Ia dfilI to

include waste incinerated itheut

ItsnotenougF just to

rcdue safety in idents at

our facilities our goal is

to eliminate thrn During

2012 we laundied global

ultc to ach Fatal
and ci ate even af ci
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Eaton Global Employment Ncmborol f%rci a1

Total No ohm Pcrccntage in Mine tHe rO cc

Tobh obi VVomer Won en only U.S only

Do 2012

Uoardofdirectors 18.2% 2/3%

nba eadrship team 30 16./H 30 26/0

Mm Ut VOS 699 112 60% 530 66 12.5%

Mar myers
/14 305 1/0% 4403 6W 149%

All other nployees 95050 79 /3 31 3% 28834 932 27 5%

employees 103 504 151 30.1% 33808 8664 25 6%
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Un ted Way ft Matcf ng DomesOc Irternat oi sastur Re ef

$8051000

2012 $8739000

Also in 2012 we formalized third-party due diligence progran to

conduct compliance background screen ings on all our th rd

party commiss oned sales agents The program expand to

cover th rdparty distributors in 2013 and beyond

Eatons 00 cc of the Ombuds prov des employees with an nde

pendent neutra and confidentia resource for dentify rig
and

resolving work related ssues and problems During 2012 we

expanded these Ombuds services to emp oyees in Australia

New Zealand Switzerland Thailand and the United Arab Emir

ates Ihe ODice of the Ombuds managed 1611 cases from 25

countries during 2012 compared to 630 nqu ries the previous

year We an to expand these services to South Korea and

Japan in 2013 as well as to new employees from Cooper in

countries where Eaton provides Ombuds assistance

Strengthening employee engagement and education

Eatons obal employee survey orov des us wth structured

way to evaluate emp oyee engagement and to solicit ideas for

how we can keep improving our workplaces 2012 96 percent

of our employees partic pated in the survey worldw de slight

dec inc compared to 97 percent the year before Emp oyee

engagement measure compiled from employee reactons

to four statements including feel proud to work for Eaton

roma ned stable globally at /5 percent Resu ts for employees

both Asia Pacific and Latin Amer ca showed strong gains

employee engagement manager effectiveness and under

standing of Eatons Code of Ethics

During the year we created several new development opportu

nities for peop in functional and eadership ro es new globa

program Eaton Plant Manager Excellence provides an enhanced

ser es of learning experiences that meet the needs of plant

managers Similarly new global program was developed to

address the technical requrements of our manufactur ng front

no leaders To ncrease flex bility in the deployment of our pop
ular Power Leadersh Development courses for middle

managers person classroom training is now offered in add

ton to the onlne web conference format Emp oyees in func

onal roles have new learning opportunities with the expansion

of 15 new courses designed for environment health and safety

human resources and sa es

Supporting strong and sustainable communities

Eaton takes fferent approacl to corporate giv ng than

many companies we let the people at our loca faci it es

determine where we donate large share of our contribu

tons based on the needs ir the commun ties and the imteo

ests of loca employees These donations gn to hundreds of

loca organizations every year Eaton people also donate

countless hours of their own time to local causes Notable

examples 2012 include

In Farcasa Romania we donated $10000 to the Farcasa

Hope Associat on to purchase med ca supples Eaton

crop oyees also have supported the organ zat on with

blood drves and persona fundraising events

In Shanghai China we donated $25000 and octrical

products to Habitat for Hu nanity China to support ts reno

vat on of housir for the derly

Our facitty in Galesburg Vichigen contreuteo $c323

to the Greater Ka amazoo United Way over the past three

years and woi the Spirt of cf igar award 20 for

medium-sized businesses from Michigan Associat on

of United Ways

We base our yearly con butions on ro ng average of

our annual prof ts so as we grow so do our contributions

to the communities in wh oh we live and work In 2012 that

exceeded $8 mi lion icluding $789016 in corporate

matches through our reJree and employee matching ft

program Laton employees dorated $3 rn II on to 95 loca

Us ted Way caropa gns dring the yero We odded $1

mil ion corporate rTrathes for tota United Way contrihu

tion of $5 ro Ilion Dur ig the year we also cor tributed

rT ore than $100000 plus emp oyee natch ng donat ons

to Hu cane Sandy re icf

Learn more about our sustainabdity efforts at Eatoncom

For more informaton about Eatons sLista abi ty efforts

please vis ur webste www eaton comn/sustainability

There youl find additior al rnetr cs about our performance

including table that conforms to ar cross references

Gohal Repotirg bit atJe CR11 reoonting qudeles and or

expanded performance dicators

2008

2009

2010

2011

$7948 000

$6 /84 000

$73U 000
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Excellent .........Good __.Neutral .......Fair .........Poor

The 2012 Annual Report improved your understanding
of Eaton as

diversified industrial enterprise
with focus on power management

....._...Strongly agree ......Sornewhat agree .........Neutral

..Sornewhat disagree ..Strongly disagree

Do you have any other comments about Eatons 2012 Annual Report

The 2012 Sustainability Report improved your
understanding of and contained

valuable information related to Eatons commitment to sustainability

.Strongly agree .......Sorriewhat agree ......Neutral

_...Sornewhat disagree .Strongly disagree

Do you have any other comments about Eatons 2012 Sustainebility Report

Please describe the ways in which you are affiliated with Eaton Examples

customer media shareholder and/or employee

Eaton shareholders can register
for electronic delivery of the Proxy

Statement and Annual Report to Shareholders as well as online proxy

DELIVERY voting at http//enroll.icSdeliVely.C0m/etn

O\PJ EI1
What is your

overall impression
of the printed annual report

FEEDBACK

We want to know

what you think of

Eatons 2012 Annual

Report Please take

few minutes to

complete this short

survey
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Report of independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Eaton Corporation plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Eaton

Corporation plc the Company the successor registrant to Eaton Corporation

as of December31 2D12 and 2D11and the related consolidated statements of

income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each

of the three years in the period ended December31 2D12 These financial

statements are the responsibility
of the Companys management Our responsi

bility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Com

pany Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and dis

closures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and
significant

estimates made by management

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly
in

all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company at

December 31 2D12 and 2D11 and the consolidated results of its operations

and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December

31 2D12 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Com

pany Accounting Oversight Board United States the Companys internal

control over financial reporting as of December31 2D12 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Commit

tee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report

dated February 2B 2D13 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

att.tlt 3/OWstLLP

ErnstY0un9LLP/

Cleveland Ohio

February2B 2D13

Managements Report on

Financial Statements

We have prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements and

related information of Eaton Corporation plc the successor registrant
to Eaton

Corporation included herein for the three years ended December 31 2D12 The

primaryresponsibilityforthe integrityof thefinancial information included inthis

annual report rests with management The financial information included in this

annual report has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gener

ally accepted in the United States based on our best estimates and judgments

and giving due consideration to materiality The opinion of Ernst Young LLP

Eatons independent registered public accounting firm on those financial state

ments is included herein

Eaton has high standards of ethical business practices supported by the Eaton

Code of Ethics and corporate policies
Careful attention is given to selecting

training and developing personnel to ensure that managements objectives of

establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls and unbiased uniform

reporting standards are attained Our policies and procedures provide reasonable

assurance that operations are conducted in conformitywith applicable laws and

with the Companys commitment to high standard of business conduct

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for the quality
of Eatons finan

cial reporting primarily through its Audit Committee which is composed of six

independent directors The Audit Committee meets regularly
with management

the internal auditors and the independent registered public accounting firm to

ensure that they are meeting their responsibilities and to discuss matters con

cerning accounting control audits and financial reporting The internal auditors

and independent registered public accounting firm have full and free access to

senior management and the Audit Committee

Ma
Alexander Cutler

Principal
Executive Officer

Billie Rawot

Principal Accounting Officer

1U4
Richard Fearon

Principal Financial Officer

February 2B 2D13
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Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Eaton Corporation plc

We have audited Eaton Corporation plcs the Company successor registrant

to Eaton Corporation internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis

sion the COSO criteria The Companys management is responsible for main

taining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Report

ing Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial report

ing assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum

stances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide rea

sonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepa

ration of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the com

pany and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effec

tiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inade

quate because of changes in conditions orthat the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate

As indicated in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting managements assessment of and conclusion on the effec

tiveness of internal control overfinancial reporting did not include the internal

controls of entities that were acquired during 2012 which are included in the

2012 consolidated financial statements of the Company and constituted 50% of

total assets as of December 31 2012 and 4% of net sales for the year then ended

Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also did not

include an evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting of entities that

were acquired during 2012

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal

control overfinancial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of

the Company as of December 312012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 312012 and our

report dated February 2B 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

4tntt J/ownq..LLP

ErnstYoungLLPf

Cleveland Ohio

February 28 2013

Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

The management of Eaton Corporation plc
is responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act rules 3a-1 5f

Under the supervision and with the participation of Eatons management

including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer we con

ducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 Our evaluation of internal con

trol over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of entities that

were acquired during 2012 which are included in the 2012 consolidated finan

cial statements and constituted approximately 50% of total assets inclusive of

acquired intangible assets as of December 31 2012 and 4% of net sales for the

year then ended In conducting this evaluation we used the framework set

forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis

sion in Intemal Control Integrated Framework Based on this evaluation under

the framework referred to above management concluded that the Companys

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 312012

The independent registered public accounting firm Ernst Young LLP has issued

an audit
report on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over finan

cial
reporting as of December 31 2012 This report is included herein

Alexander Cutler

Principal Executive Officer

At

Billie Rawot

Principal Accounting Officer

February 28 2013

Richard Faaron

Principal Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statements of Income

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31 2012 2011 2010

fn mIJions except for per share data

Netsales $16311 $16049 $13715

Costofproductssold 11448 11261 9633

Selling and administrative expense 2894 2738 2486

Research and development expense 439 417 425

Interest expense-net 208 118 136

Other expense income-net 71 38

Income before income taxes 1251 1553 1036

Income tax expense 31 201 99

Net income 1220 1352 937

Less net income for noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Eaten ordinary shareholders 1217 1350 929

Net income
per ordinary share

Diluted 3.46 3.93 2.73

Basic 3.54 3.98 2.76

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

Diluted 350.9 342.8 339.5

Basic 347.8 338.3 335.5

Cash dividends declared
per ordinary share 1.52 1.36 1.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 2010

In millions

Net income 1220 1352 937

Less net income for
noncontrolling

interests

Net income attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders 1217 1350 929

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Currency translation and related hedging instruments 109 241 78

Pensions and other postretirement benefits 152 353 62

Cash flow hedges 17 22

Other comprehensive loss attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders 26 616 140

Total comprehensive income attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders $1191 734 789

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER31 2012 2011

in millions

Assets

Current assets

Cash 577 385

Short-term investments 527 699

Accounts receivable-net 3510 2444

Inventory
2349 1701

Deferred income taxes 449 398

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 432 199

Total current assets 7844 5826

Property plant and equipment

Land and buildings 1894 1525

Machineryandequipment 5814 4669

Gross property plant and equipment 7708 6194

Accumulated depreciation 3831 3592

Net property plant
and equipment 3877 2602

Other noncurrent assets

Goodwill 14396 5537

Other intangible assets 6779 2192

Deferred income taxes 1254 1134

Other assets 1698 582

Total assets $35848 $17873

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Current liabilities

Short-term debt 757 86

Current
portion

of long-term debt 314 321

Accounts payable 1879 1491

Accrued compensation 463 420

Othercurrent liabilities 2018 1319

Total current liabilities 5431 3637

Noncurrent liabilities

Long-term debt 9762 3366

Pension liabilities 1997 1793

Other postretirement benefits liabilities 732 642

Deferred income taxes 2024 442

Other noncurrent liabilities 774 501

Total noncurrent liabilities 15289 6744

Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares 470.7 million outstanding
in 2012 and 334.4 million in 2011 167

Capital in excess of
par

value 11271 4169

Retained earnings 5805 5103

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 1990 1964

Shares held in trust

Total Eaton shareholders equity 15086 7469

Noncontrolling interests 42 23

Total equity
15128 7492

Total liabilities and
equity

$35848 $17873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31 2012 2011 2010

In millions

Operating activities

Net income $1220 1352 937

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 598 556 551

Deferred income taxes 155 113 26

Pension expense
273 227 179

Contributionsto pension plans 413 372 403

Contributions to other postretirement benefits plans 43 223 82

Excess tax benefit from equity-based compensation 21 57

Changes in working capital

Accounts receivable-net 108 219 305

Inventory
166 113 219

Accounts payable 220 92 322

Accrued compensation 52 38 203

Accrued income and other taxes 86 123 11

Othercurrentassets 117 11 46

Othercurrent liabilities 30 30 22

Other-net 142 52 108

Net cash provided by operating activities 1664 1248 1282

Investing activities

Capital expenditures for property plant and equipment 593 568 394

Cash paid
for

acquisitions
of businesses net of cash acquired 6936 325 222

Sales purchases of short-term investments-net 603 103 392

Other-net ____ ___ii

Net cash used in investing activities 6972 800 1012

Financing
activities

Proceeds from borrowings 7156 381 55

Payments on borrowings 1324 78 102

Paymentsoflinancingcosts 117

Cash dividends paid 512 462 363

Exerciseofemployeestockoptions 95 71 157

lssuancerepurchaseof shares 159 343

Excess tax benefit from equity-based compensation 21 57

Other-net

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 5480 381 261

Effect of currency on cash 20 15 16

Total increase decrease in cash 192 52

Cash at the beginning of the period
385 333 340

Cash at the end of the
period

$577 $385 $333

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

In millions

Balance at January 12010

Net income

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Cash dividends paid

Issuance of shares under equity-based compensation

plans-net net of income tax expense of $3

Balance at December 312010

Net income

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Cash dividends paid

Issuance ot shares under
equity-based compensation

plans-net net of income tax benefit ot $72

Business divestiture

Repurchase of shares

Balance at December 312011

Net income

Other comprehensive loss net ot tax

Cash dividends paid

Exchange of Eaton Corporation shares par value $0.50

per share for Eaton shares par value $0.01 per share

Issuance of shares under equity-based compensation

plans-net net of income tax benefit of $23

Issuance of shares under employee benefit plans

Issuance of shares from acquisition of business

Registration
of ordinary shares

Balance at December 312012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

16

238 343

5103 1964 7469 23

1217 1217

130

166

6649

_______

5805 1990 15086
_______

Accemulated

Capital other Tetal Eaton

Ordinaryshares ineocessof Retained comprehensive Sharesheld shareholders Noncontrolling Total

Shares Dollars parvaloe earnings loss in trast equity
Interests eqoity

332.3 166 3947 3B93 12DB 21 6777 41 6B1B

929 929 937

140 140 140

363 363 371

7.6 146 13 159 159

339.9 170 4093 4455 1348 7362 41 7403

1350 1350 1352

462

2.8 177

616 616

462

178

616

466

8.3 101

334.4 167 4169

166 166

5.0 129

3.2 166

128.1 6648

4701 $11271

178

16

343

7492

1220

512

26 26

512

26

515

19

42

130

166

6668

$15128
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Amounts are in millions unless indicated otherwise per share data assume dilution

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General Information

Eaton Corporation plc Eaton or the Company was incorporated under the laws of Ire

land on May 102012 and became the successor registrant to Eaton Corporation on

November 30 2012 in connection with the consummation of the acquisition of Cooper

Industries
plc Cooper which is further described below Eaton is diversified power

management company providing energy-efficient solutions that help its customers

effectively manage electrical hydraulic and mechanical power with 2012 net sales of

$16.3 billion The Company is global technology leader in electrical products sys

tems and services for power quality
distribution and control power transmission

lighting
and

wiring products hydraulics components systems and services for indus

trial and mobile equipment aerospace fuel hydraulics and pneumatic systems for

commercial and military use and truck and automotive drivetrain and powertrain sys

tems for performance fuel economy and safety Eaton has approximately 103000

employees in over 50 countries and sells products to customers in 175 countries

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated

financial statements and notes Actual results could differfrom these estimates

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date the consolidated

financial statements were filed with the Securities Exchange Commission

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Eaton and all subsid

iaries and other controlled entities Intercompany transactions and balances have

been eliminated The equity method of accounting is used for investments in asso

ciate companies where the Company has 20% to 50% ownership interest Equity

investments are evaluated for impairment whenever events or circumstances indi

cate the book value of the investment exceeds fair value An impairment would

exist if there is an other-than-temporary decline in value These associate compa

nies are not material either individually or in the aggregate to Eatons consolidated

financial statements Eaton does not have off-balance sheet arrangements or

financings with unconsolidated entities In the ordinary course of business the

Company leases certain real properties and equipment as described in Note

Eatons functional currency is United States Dollars USD The functional currency

for most subsidiaries is their local currency Financial statements for these subsid

iaries are translated at year-end exchange rates as to assets and liabilities and

weighted-average exchange rates as to revenues and expenses The resulting

translation adjustments are recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year

presentation

Revenue Recognition

Sales of products are recognized when sales agreement is in place products have

been shipped to unaffiliated customers and title has transferred in accordance with

shipping terms the selling price is fixed and determinable and collectability is reason

ably assured all significant related acts of performance have been completed and no

other significant uncertainties exist Shipping and handling costs billed to customers

are included in Net sales and the related costs in Cost of products sold Although the

majority of the sales agreements contain standard terms and conditions there are

agreements that contain
multiple

elements or non-standard terms and conditions As

result judgment is required to determine the appropriate accounting including

whether the deliverables specified in these agreements should be treated as separate

units of accounting for recognition purposes and if so how the sales price should be

allocated among the elements and when to recognize sales for each element For

delivered elements sales are recognized only when the delivered elements have

standalone value fair values of undelivered elements are known there are no uncer

tainties regarding customer acceptance and there are no customer-negotiated refund

or return rights affecting
the sales recognized for delivered elements Sales for ser

vice contracts generally are recognized as the services are provided

Eaton records reductions to revenue for customer and distributor incentives primarily

comprised of rebates at the time of the initial sale Rebates are estimated based on

sales terms historical experience trend analysis and projected market conditions in

the various markets served The rebate programs offered
vary across businesses due

to the numerous markets Eaton serves but the most common incentives relate to

amounts paid or credited to customers for achieving defined volume levels

Long-Lived Assets

Depreciation and amortization for property plant and equipment and
intangible

assets subject to amortization are generally computed by the straight-line method

and included in Cost of products sold Selling and administrative expense and

Research and development expense as appropriate Cost of buildings are depreci

ated generally over 40 years and machinery and equipment over to 10 years At

December 312012 the weighted-average amortization
period

for
intangible

assets subject to amortization was 17 years for patents and technology primarily

as result of the long life of aircraft platforms and 15 years forcustomer relation

ships Software is amortized up to maximum life of 10 years

Long-lived assets except goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying

amount may not be recoverable Upon indications of impairment assets and liabili

ties are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely inde

pendent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities The asset group would be

considered impaired when the estimated future net undiscounted cash flows gener

ated by the asset group are less than its
carrying

value Determining asset groups

and underlying cash flows requires the use of significant judgment

Goodwill and Indefinite Life Intangible Assets

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are evaluated annually for impairment

as of July using either quantitative or qualitative analysis The Company performs

quantitative analysis using discounted cash flow model and other valuation

techniques but may elect to perform qualitative analysis qualitative analysis is

performed by assessing certain trends and factors including projected market out

look and growth rates forecasted and actual sales and operating profit margins

discount rates industry data and other relevant qualitative factors These trends

and factors are compared to and based on the assumptions used in the most

recent quantitative assessment Additionally goodwill and indefinite life intangible

assets are evaluated for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate

there may be possible permanent loss of value

Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level which is equivalent to

Eatons operating segments and based on the net assets for each segment includ

ing goodwill and intangible assets Goodwill is assignod to oath operating segment

as this represents the lowest level that constitutes business and for which discrete

financial information is available and is the level which management regularly

reviews the operating results

Goodwill impairment testing
for 2D12 and 2D11 was performed by assessing certain

qualitative trends and factors as described above These trends and factors were

compared to and based on the assumptions used in the quantitative assessment

performed in 2D1D For 2012 and 2011 it is more likelythan not that the fair value of

Eatons
reporting

units substantially exceeded the respective carrying amount

Indefinite life intangible assets primarily consist of trademarks The fair value of

these assets are determined using royalty relief methodology similarto that

employed when the associated assets were acquired but using updated estimates of

future sales cash flows and profitability For 2012 and 2011 the fair value of indefinite

lived intangible assets substantially exceeded the respective carrying value

For additional information about goodwill and other intangible assets see Note

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

Eaton uses derivative financial instruments to manage the exposure to the volatility

in raw material costs currency and interest rates on certain debt These instruments

are marked to fair value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet Changes

in the fair value of derivative assets or liabilities i.e gains or losses are recognized

depending upon the type of hedging relationship and whether an instrument has

been designated as hedge For those instruments that
qualify

for hedge accounting

Eaton designates the hedging instrument based upon the exposure being hedged

as cash flow hedge fair value hedge or hedge of net investment in
foreign

operation Changes in fairvalue of these instruments that do not qualify for hedge

accounting are recognized immediately in net income See Note 12 for additional

information about hedges and derivative financial instruments

Warranty Accruals

Product warranty accruals are established at the time the related sale is recognized

through charge to Cost of products sold Warranty accrual estimates are based

primarily on historical warranty claim experience and specific customer contracts

Provisions for warranty accruals are comprised of basic warranties for products sold

as well as accruals for product recalls and other events when they are known and

estimable See Note for additional information about warranty accruals
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Fair Value of Consideration Transferred
Asset Retirement Obligations

conditional asset retirement obligation is recognized at fair value when incurred if

the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated Uncertainty about the timing

or method of settlement of conditional asset retirement
obligation

would be consid

ered in the measurement of the liability when sufficient information exists Eaton

believes that for substantially all of its asset retirement obligations
there is an indeter

minate settlement date because the range of time over which the Company may settle

the obligation is unknown or cannot be estimated liability for these obligations will

be recognized when sufficient information is available to estimate fair value

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference

between the financial statement and tax basis of the
respective

assets and liabilities

using enacted tax rates in effect for the year when the differences are expected to

reverse Deferred income tax assets are recognized for income tax loss carryforwards

and income tax credit carryforwards Judgment is required in determining and evalu

ating income tax provisions and valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets

Eaton recognizes the income tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is

more likely than not that the tax position
will be sustained on examination by taxing

authorities based on the technical merits of the position Eaton evaluates and

adjusts these accruals based on changing facts and circumstances Eaton recognizes

interest and penalties related to unrecognized income tax benefits in the provision

for income tax expense The Company has accrued penalties in jurisdictions where

they are automatically applied to any deficiency regardless of the merit of the position

For additional information about income taxes see Note

Equity-Based Compensation

Eaton recognizes equity-based compensation expense based on the
grant

date fair

value of the award over the
period during which an employee is required to provide

service in exchange for the award Restricted stock units and awards IRSUs are

issued at fair market value at the date of grant These awards entitle the holder to

receive one ordinary share for each RSU upon vesting generally over three orfour

years Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the closing market

price
of Eaton ordinary shares on the date of grant The fair value of stock options is

determined using Black-Scholes option-pricing model which incorporates assump

tions regarding the expected volatility
the expected option life the risk-free interest

rate and the expected dividend yield See Note 10 for additional information about

equity-based compensation

Note Acquisitions and Sale of Businesses

Eaton acquired businesses and entered into joint venture in separate transactions

for combined purchase prices totaling $13796 in 2012 $325 in 2011 and $222 in 2010

The Consolidated Statements of Income include the results of these businesses from

the dates of the transactions or formation

Cooper Industries plc

On November 30 2012 Eaton Corporation acquired Cooper for purchase price of

$13192 At the completion of the transaction the holder of each Cooper common

share received from Eaton $39.15 in cash and 0.77479 of an Eaton ordinary share

As result of the transaction based on the number of outstanding shares of Eaton

Corporation and Cooper as of November 30 2012 former Eaton Corporation and

Cooper shareholders hold approximately 73% and 27% respectively of Eatons

ordinary shares after
giving

effect to the acquisition

Cooper was incorporated in Ireland and is diversified global manufacturer of

electrical products and systems with brands
including

Bussmann electrical and

electronic fuses Crouse-Hinds and CEAG explosion-proof electrical equipment

Halo and Metalux lighting fixtures and Kyle and McGraw-Edison power systems

products Cooper had annual sales of $5409 for 2011 For segment reporting pur

poses Cooper has been identified as segment at December 31 2012 See Note 14

for additional information about business segments

Eatons management believes the acquisition of Cooper will provide substantial

synergies including but not limited to enhanced operational cost efficiencies

incremental revenue opportunities the acceleration of Eatons long-term growth

potential through greater exposure to faster growing end markets increased earnings

and cash flow and better access to capital
markets as result of enhanced size and

an expanded business line

The total purchase price for the acquisition of Cooper was $13192 comprised of

Eaton share consideration valued at $6649 and cash consideration for Cooper

shares of $6474 and to settle certain Cooper equity-based compensation plans of

$69 as follows

Cooper shares outstanding as of November 302012 163.6

Cooper shares issued pursuant to conversion of stock options and share

units outstanding under Cooper equity-based compensation plans 1.8

Total Cooper shares and share equivalents prior to transaction 165.4

Exchange ratio
per

share 0.77479

Total Eaton shares issued 128.1

Weighted-average Eaton Corporation per
share price on November 302012 51.91

Total value of Eaton shares issued 6649

Total cash consideration paid at $39.15 per Cooper share

and share equivalent 6474

Total cash consideration paid for equity-based compensation plans 69

Total consideration 13192

Preliminary Estimated Fair Values

The acquisition of Cooper has been accounted for using the acquisition method of

accounting which requires among other things the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed be recognized at their respective fair values as of the acquisition date For

accounting purposes Eaton has been treated as the acquirer in the transaction

Acquisition accounting is dependent upon certain valuations and other studies that

have
yet to commence or progress to stage where there is sufficient information

for definitive measurement The process for estimating the fair values of identifi

able
intangible assets and certain

tangible assets and assumed liabilities requires

the use of judgment in determining the appropriate assumptions and estimates

The entire purchase price allocation for Cooper is preliminary As the Company final

izes the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed additional purchase

price adjustments will be recorded during the measurement period in 2013 Fair

value estimates are based on complex series of judgments about future events and

uncertainties and rely heavily on estimates and assumptions The judgments used to

determine the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and

liabilities assumed as well as asset lives can materially impact the Companys

results of operations The finalization of the purchase accounting assessment will

result in changes in the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and may

have material impact on the Companys results of operations and financial position

The table below presents the preliminary estimated fair values of assets acquired

and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date These preliminary estimates will be

revised during the measurement period as third-party
valuations are finalized addi

tional information becomes available and as additional analyses are performed and

these differences could have material impact on Eatons results of operations and

financial position

November 30

zsr

Working capital accounts 2314

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 339

Property plant and equipment 840

Investment in Apex Tool Group LLC 800

Intangible assets 4577

Other assets 35

Debt 112211

Accounts payable 15191

Other current liabilities 16341

Other noncurrent liabilities 119431

Total identifiable net assets 4688

Goodwill 8504

Total consideration 13192

Ill Wnrkixn cnpital accounts include Cash Short-term inveotmunts Accounts rnceivabln and Inventory
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Goodwill is calculated as the excess ot the consideration transterred over the net

assets recognized and represents the expected revenue and cost synergies of the

combined company and assembled worktorce which are further described above

Goodwill recognized as result of the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes

See Note for additional information about goodwill and other intangible assets

The
preliminary

estimated fair value ot Accounts receivable is based on the histori

cal gross contractual amount receivable as of the acquisition date and totals $963

Contingent liabilities assumed as part of the transaction total $149 and are included

in Other current liabilities and Other noncurrent liabilities These contingent liabilities

are related to environmental legal including product liability claims and tax matters

Contingent liabilities are recorded atfairvalue in purchase accounting aside from

those
pertaining to uncertainty in income taxes which are an exception to the fair

value basis of accounting Legal matters and certain environmental matters that are

legal in nature are recorded at the respective probable and estimable amount The

estimated fair values noted above are preliminary and based on historical recorded

amounts and are subject to change upon completion of the final valuation Changes

in the respective fair value of these assumed contingent liabilities may be material

Actual and Pro Forma Impact

Eatons Consolidated Financial Statements include Coopers results of operations

from the date of acquisition on November 30 2012 through December 31 2012

Net sales and segment operating profit attributable to Cooper during this period

and included in Eatons Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended

December 312012 total $470 and $66 respectively

The following unaudited
pro

forma information gives effect to Eatons acquisition

of Cooper as if the acquisition had occurred on January 12011 and Cooper had

been included in Eatons consolidated results of operations for the years ended

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

2012 2011

Net sales 21792 $21600

Net income trom continuing operations attributable

to Eaton ordinary shareholders 1751 1699

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 3.66 3.61

The historical consolidated financial information of Eaton and Cooper has been

adjusted in the
pro

forma information to give effect to
pro

forma events that are

directly
attributable to the transaction factually supportable and expected

to have continuing impact on the combined results For pro forma purposes the

equity in income of Apex Tool Group LLC has been excluded as this
joint

venture

was sold on February 12013

Acquisitions and Sale of Other Businesses

Eaton acquired other businesses and entered into joint venture in separate trans

actions in 2012 2011 and 2010 The Consolidated Statements of Income include

the results of these businesses from the dates of the transactions or formation

These transactions and the related annual sales prior to acquisition are summa

rized on page 35

Sale of Apex Tool Group LLC

In July 2010 Cooperformed joint venture named Apex Tool Group LLC Apex with

Danaher Corporation Danaher Apex was formed by combining Coopers tools busi

ness with certain tools businesses from Danahers Tools and Components segment

Cooper and Danaher each owned 50% interest in the joint venture had equal repre

sentation on its board of directors and had 50% voting interest in the joint venture

On October 10 2012 Cooper and Danaher announced they had entered into defini

tive agreement to sell Apex to Bain Capital for approximately $1.6 billion subject to

post-closing adjustments On February 12013 the sale of Apex was completed

Acquisition integration charges

Electrical Americas

Electrical Rest of World

Cooper

Hydraulics

Aerospace

Total business segments

Corporate

$7 $8 $2
33

16

33 14 40

11

Total acquisition integration charges $44 $14 $4t

Transaction costs

Corporate

Financing fees

Total acquisition integration charges and

transaction costs before income taxes

Total after income taxes

Per ordinary share diluted

Integration charges in 2012 were related primarily to Polimer Kauçuk Sanayl ye Pazar

lama A.S SEL Jell Hydraulics Cooper and Internormen Technology Group Integration

charges in 2011 were related primarily to CopperLogic Tuthill Coupling Group Wright

Line Holding EMC Engineers and Internormen Technology Group Integration charges

in 2010 were related primarily to Moeller and Phoenixtec These charges were included

in Cost of products sold or Selling and administrative expense as appropriate

Corporate integration charges in 2012 were related primarily to the acquisition of

Cooper These charges were included in Selling and administrative expense In Busi

ness Segment Information the charges were included in Other corporate expense-net

Acquisition-related transaction costs such as investment banking legal and other

professional fees are not included as component of consideration transferred in an

acquisition but are expensed as incurred Acquisition-related transaction costs in

2012 were related primarily to the acquisition of Cooper These charges were

included in Selling and administrative expense Interest expense-net and Other

expense income-net In Business Segment Information the charges were included

in Interest expense-net and Other corporate expense-net

See Note for additional information about Cooper and other business acquisitions

Restructuring Charges

During the fourth quarter of 2012 Eaton undertook restructuring
activities to improve

the efficiency of certain businesses These actions resulted in charge of $50 com

prised of severance costs totaling $34 and other non-cash expenses totaling $16 These

charges were included in Cost of products sold or Selling and administrative expense as

appropriate In Business Segment Information the charges reduced Operating profit of

the related business segment See Note 14 for additional information about business

segments As of December 312012 the liability related to these restructuring actions

totaled $34 and is expected to be
paid

out
during

the first half of 2013

Note Acquisition Integration and Restructuring Charges

Acquisition Integration Charges and Transaction Costs

Eaton incurs integration charges and transaction costs related to acquired busi

nesses summary of these charges follows

2012 2011 2010

Total transaction costs

$106

72

$178

$222 14 $40

$10 $27
0.48 0.03 $0.08
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Summary of Acquisitions of Businesses and Joint Ventures

Business

Acquired businesses and joint venture Date of transaction segment Annual sales

Rolec Comercial Industrial S.A September28 2012 Electrical $B5forthe 12

Chilean manufacturer of integrated power assemblies and low- and medium-vo Itage switchgeai

Americas months ended

anda provider of engineering services serving mining and other heavy industrial applications
September 30 2012

in Chile and Peru

Jell Hydraulics Co Ltd July 62012 Hydraulics $189 for 2011

Korean manufacturer of track drive motors swing drive motors main control valves and remote

control valves for the construction equipment market

Polimer Kaucuk Sanayi ye Pazarlama A. June 12012 Hydraulics $335 for 2011

Turkish manufacturer of hydraulic and industrial hose for construction mining agriculture

oil and gas manufacturing food and beverage and chemicals markets This business sells

its products under the SEL brand name

Gycom Electrical Low-Voltage Power Distribution Control and Automation June 12012 Electrical $24 for 2011

Swedish electrical low-voltage power distribution control and automation components business
Rest of World

E.A Pedersen Company December 292011 Electrical $3 for 2011

United States manufacturer of medium voltage switchgeat metal-clad switchgeat power control
Americas

buildings and relay control panels primarily for the electrical utilities industry

IE Power Inc August3l2011 Electrical $5for2OlU

Canadian provider of high power inverters fora variety of mission-critical applications including
Americas

solat wind and battery energy storage

Begerow GmbH Co KG August 152011 Hydraulics $84 for 2010

German system provider of advanced liquid filtration solutions This business develops and

produces technologically innovative filter media and filtration systems for food and beverage

chemical pharmaceutical and industrial applications

ACTOM Low Voltage June 302011 Electrical $65 for the

South African manufacturer and supplier of motor control components engineered electrical
Rest of World year ended

distribution systems and uninterruptible power systems
May31 2011

Cl ESI de Colombia S.A June 22011 Electrical $8 for 2010

Colombian distributor of industrial electrical equipment and engineering services in the
Americas

Colombian market focused on oil and gas mining and industrial and commercial construction

Internormen Technology Group May 122011 Hydraulics $55 for 2010

Germany-based manufacturer of hydraulic filtration and instrumentation with sales and

distribution subsidiaries in China the United States India and Brazil

Eaton-SAMC Shanghai Aircraft Conveyance System Manufacturing Co Ltd March 82011 Aerospace Joint venture

49%-owned joint venture in China focusing on the design developmenl manufacturing and

support of fuel and hydraulic conveyance systems for the global civil aviation market

Tuthill Coupling Group January 12011 Hydraulics $35 forthe

United States based manufacturer of pneumatic and hydraulic quick coupling solutions and year
ended

leak-free connectors used in industriai construction mining defense eriergyand power applications

November 30 2010

Chloride Phoenixtec Electronics October 122010 Electrical $25 for the

China manufacturerof uninterruptible power systems Eaton acquired the remaining
Rest of World year ended

shares to increase its ownership from 50% to 100%
September 30 2010

CopperLogic Inc October 12010 Electrical $35forthe

Canadian manufacturer of electrical and electromechanical systems
Americas year ended

September 302010

Wright Line Holding Inc August 25 2010 Electrical $101 forthe

United States provider of customized enclosures rack systems and air-flow managementsystems
Americas

year
ended

to store power and secure mission-critical ITdata center electronics
June 30 2010

EMC Engineers Inc July15 2010 Electrical $24for 2009

United States energy engineering and energy services company that delivers energy efficiency
Americas

solutions for wide range of governmentaL educational commercial and industrial facilities
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2012 2011

Electrical Americas 2677 2043

Electrical Rest of World 1188 981

Cooper 7725

Hydraulics 1404 1116

Aerospace 1045 1040

Truck 149 150

Automotive 208 207

Total goodwill $14396 $5537

The increase in goodwill in 2012 was primarily due to the acquisition of Cooper which

totaled $8504 As result of benefiting from the anticipated synergies of acquiring

Cooper $601 and $191 of the total
goodwill

from the acquisition of Cooper was allo

cated to the Electrical Americas and Electrical Rest of World reporting units respec

tively Excluding the impact of the
acquisition

of Cooper the increase in goodwill in

2012 was primarily due to other business acquisitions and currency translation For

additional information
regarding Cooper and other business acquisitions see Note

summary of other intangible assets follows

2012 2011

Historical Accumulated Histurical Accumulated

cost amurtization cuut amurtizatiun

Intangible assets not subject to amortization

primarily trademarks $1296 $451

Intangible assets subject to amortization

Customer relationships $4100 428 1173 322

Patentsandtechnology 1500 325 849 308

Other 792 156 481 132

Total other intangible assets 6392 909 2503 762

Amortization expense related to intangible assets subject to amortization in 2012

and estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years follows

2012 186

2013 420

2014 413

2015 409

2016 405

2017 402

Other Intangible Assets Related to the Acquisition ot Cooper

The preliminary estimated fair values of other intangible assets acquired in the Coo

per transaction included in the table above were determined using an income valua

tion approach which requires forecast of expected future cash flows either

through the use of the relief-from-royalty method or the multi-period excess earn

ings
method The estimated useful lives are based on Eatons historical experience

These estimated fair values and useful lives are subject to change upon completion

of the final valuation Changes in fair value of the acquired intangible assets may be

material The estimated fair value of these identifiable intangible assets their esti

mated useful lives and valuation methodology are as follows

Fairvalue Useful life Valuation method

Trade names indefinite-lived 845 N/A Relief-from-royalty

Trade names 307 3-15 Relief-from-royalty

Customer relationships 2780 14-20 Multi-period excess earnings

Technology 645 8-15 Relief-from-royalty

4577

5.75% notes due 2012

4.90% notes due 2013

$200 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

5.95% notes due 2014

$100 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

Floating rate notes due 2014

$300 converted to fixed rate by interest rate swap

5.45% debentures due 2015

4.65% notes due 2015

0.95% senior notes due 2015

2.375% debentures due 2016

5.30% notes due 2017

$150 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

6.10% debentures due 2017

1.50% senior notes due 2017

5.60% notes due 2018

$415 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

4.215% Japanese Yen notes due 2018

6.95% notes due 2019

$300 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

3.87 5% debentures due 2020

3.47% notes due 2021

8.10% debentures due 2022

2.75% senior notes due 2022

3.68% notes due 2023

6.50% debentures due 2025

7.65% debentures due 2029

$50 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

4.00% senior notes due 2032

5.45% debentures due 2034

$25 converted to floating rate by interest rate swap

5.80% notes due 2037

4.15% senior notes due 2042

5.25% to 12.5% notes maturities ranging from 2012 to 20351

Other

Total long-term debt

Less current portion of long-term debt

Long-term
debt less current portion

Short-term debt of $757 at Oecember 312012 included an outstanding borrowing

of $659 on $6.75 billion 364-day bridge facility as described below $75 of short-

term commercial paper in the United States which had weighted-average inter

est rate of 0.50% $9 of other short-term debt in the United States and $4 of

short-term debt outside the United States Short-term debt of $86 at Oecember 31

2011 included $75 of short-term commercial paper in the United States which had

woightod-average interest rate of 0.45% $10 of other short-term debt in the

United States and $1 of short-term debt outside the United States Borrowings

outside the United States are generally denominated in local currencies Opera

tions outside the United States had available short-term lines of credit of $2099

from various banks worldwide at Oecember 31 2012

On November 30 2012 the closing date of the acquisition of Cooper Eaton borrowed

$1669 on $6.75 billion 364-day bridge facility the Facility which was obtained on

May 21 2012 The Facility was obtained to finance portion of the cash paid to acquire

Cooper and was available in
single

draw on the
closing

date of the
acquisition

At

Oecember 312012 $669 remained outstanding Related deferred financing fees

totaled $69 of which $68 have been amortized in Interest expense-net as of Decem

ber 31 2012 On February 12013 Eaton repaid the outstanding balance on the Facility

On November 142012 Eaton issued senior notes the Senior Notes totaling $4900

related to
financing

the cash portion of the acquisition of Cooper The Senior Notes

are comprised of five tranches which mature in 2015 2017 2022 2032 and 2042

with interest payable semi-annually at
respective rate of 0.95% 1.50% 2.75%

4.00% and 4.15% Eaton received proceeds totaling $4853 from the issuance net of

financing costs and nominal discounts The Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally

guaranteed on an unsubordinated unsecured basis by Eaton and certain of its direct

and indirect subsidiaries The Senior Notes contain an optional redemption provision

summary of
goodwill

follows

Note Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Note Debt

summary of long-term debt including the current portion follows

2012 2011

$300

300 300

250 250

300

300

100

600

250

250

300

1000

300

100

250

450 450

116 129

300

250

300

100

1600

300

145

200

700

140

240

1000

255

330

10076

1314

$9762

300

100

145

200

140

240

266

217

3687

13211

$3366
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by which the Company may make an offer to purchase all or any part
of the Senior

Notes at purchase price
of the

greater
of 100% of the principal amount of the

respective Senior Notes being redeemed or the sum of the present values of the

respective remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to

the redemption date on semi-annual basis plus
basis points ranging from 10 to 25

based on the respective
Senior Note tranche The Senior Notes also contain

change of control provision which requires the Company to make an offer to pur

chase all or any part
of the Senior Notes at purchase price of 101% of the principal

amount plus accrued and unpaid interest The Senior Notes are required to be regis

tered within 360 days of issuance and are subject to penalties for failure to comply

with this provision At December 312012 capitalized
deferred

financing
fees total

$40 The
capitalized

deferred financing fees and nominal discounts are amortized in

Interest expense-net over the respective terms of the Senior Notes The Senior

Notes are subject to customary non-financial covenants

On June 282012 Eaton received proceeds totaling $600 from the
private

issuance

of $300 3.47% notes due June 28 2021 and $300 3.68% notes due June 28 2023

collectively the Notes Interest is payable semi-annually The Notes contain

change of control provision which requires the Company to make an offer to pur

chase all or any part of the Notes at purchase price
of 100% of the principal amount

plus
accrued and unpaid interest The Notes are subject to certain customary cove

nants and are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Eaton and certain of its direct

and indirect subsidiaries

On June 142012 Eaton refinanced $500 three-year revolving credit facility and

$500 five-year revolving credit facility with $750 three-year revolving
credit facil

ity that will expire June 142015 and $750 five-year revolving credit facility that

will
expire

June 142017 respectively On June 16 2011 Eaton refinanced $500

five-year revolving creditfacility
that had been set to expire on September 12011

The new $500 five-year revolving credit facility will expire June 16 2018 The 2012

refinancings increased long-term revolving credit facilities from $1500 to $2000

The revolving
creditfacilities are used to support commercial paper borrowings and

are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Eaton and certain of its direct and indi

rect subsidiaries including Cooper There were no borrowings outstanding under

Eatons revolving credit facilities at December 31 2012 or 2011

On June 16 2011 Eaton issued $300 floating rate senior unsecured Notes due June

162014 the Floating Rate Notes The Floating Rate Notes bear interest annually at

floating rate reset quarterly equal to the three-month LIBOR rate for U.S dollars

pIus 0.33% Interest is payable quarterly in arrears The Floating Rate Notes contain

provision which requires the Company to make an offer to purchase all or any part

of the Floating Rate Notes at purchase price of 101% of the principal amount plus

accrued and unpaid interest if certain change of control events occur The Floating

Rate Notes are subject to customary non-financial covenants

Eaton is in compliance with each of its debt covenants for all periods presented

Eaton Corporation and Cooper each issued guarantees on November 302012 and

January 82013 respectively on all material outstanding debt of the other

Mandatory maturities of long-term debt for each of the next five years follow

2013 314

2014 568

2015 1008

2016 261

2017 1551

Interest paid on debt follows

2012 276

2011 174

2010 170

Note Retirement Benefits Plans
___________________________

Eaton has defined benefits pension plans and other postretirement benefits plans

Obligations and Funded Status

Funded status

Fair value of plan assets

Benefit obligations

Funded status

Amounts recognized in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total

Amounts recognized
in

Accumulated other

comprehensive
loss pretax

Net actuarial loss

Prior service cost credit

Other

Total

Unitud States Non-Unitud Stutes Other postrutirement

pensiun liabilities pension liabilities liubilitius

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

2607 1664 1248 988 146 156

3817 2899 2006 1505 940 853

$1210 $1235 1758 516 1794 697

71 78

15 112 27 124 152 155

1195 11223 802 570 732 642

$1210 $11235 1758 516 794 1697

1618 1601 550 348 269 257

10

1621 1602 559 358 262 248

Change in Benefit Obligations

United Status Nun-united States Other pustretirentest

pension lisbilitius pension liabilities liabilities

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Balance at January 2899 2458 $1505 $1460 853 826

Servicecost 115 93 50 48 17 15

Interest cost 134 132 77 78 38 41

Actuarial loss 264 345 196 26 34 41

Gross benefits paid 1132 1131 78 182 94 101

Currency translation 54 123

Acquisitions 536 201 64

Other 28 32

Balanceatoecember3l 3817 2899 $2006 $1505 940 853

Accumulated benefit

obligation 3639 2762 $1878 $1364

Change in Plan Assets

United States Non-United States Other pootrutirement

pension lisbilitiea pension liabilities liabilities

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Balance atJanuaryl 1664 1572 989 937 156

Actual return on plan

assets 293 41 86 39 13

Employercontributions 311 264 102 108 43 223

Gross benefits paid 132 131 78 182 94 101

Currency translation 39

Acquisitions 471 128

Other 18 17 28 32

Balance at December31 2607 1664 $1248 989 146 156

The components of pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation
in excess

of plan assets at December31 follow

United Status Non-United States

pension liabilities pension liabilities

2012 2011 2012 2011

Projected benefit obligation $3817 2899 $1405 990

Accomulatedbenefitobligation 3639 2762 1300 925

Fairvalueofplanassets 2607 1664 657 446
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Retirement Benefits Plans Assumptions

Pension Plans

United Staten Nnn-United Staten

penninn plann pennine plann

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

to

1% increane 1% decreane

$1 $1
22 20

2013 2012 2011 2010

United States plans 191 311 264 313

Non-United States plans
112 102 108 90

Total contributions 303 413 372 403

During 2011 Eaton contributed $154 into Voluntary Employee Benefit Association

3.97% 4.70% 5.50% 4.17% 5.12% 5.40% VEBA trust for the pro-funding ot postretirement Medicare Part proscription drug

benefits for the Companys eligible United States employees and retirees

3.16% 3.15% 3.61% 3.09% 3.62% 3.63%
The following table provides the estimated pension and other postretirement benefit

payments for each ot the next five years and the five years fhereafter in the aggre

gate For other postretirement benefits liabilities the expected subsidy receipts

4.70% 5.50% 6.00% 5.12% 5.40% 5.59% relate to the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of

2003 which would reduce the gross payments listed below

8.50% 8.50% 8.95% 7.10% 7.17% 7.20% tetimatedetherpostretirement

benefit paprnentn

3.15% 3.61% 3.62% 3.62% 3.63% 3.58%

The expected long-term rate of return on pension assets was determined tor each 2013

country and reflects long-term historical data
taking

into account each plans tar- 2014

get asset allocation The discount rate was determined using appropriate bond 2015

data for each country 2016

2017

2018-2022
Other Postretirentent Benefits Plans

Substantially all ot the obligation tor other postretirement benefits plans relates to
____________________________________________________________________________

United States plans Assumptions used to determine other postretirement benefits

Pension lump-sum payments in 2013 are restricted to 50% due to limitations

obligations
and expense tollow

imposed by the Pension Protection Act

Assumptions used to determine benefit

obligation at year-end

Discount rate

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year

Ultimate health care cost trend rate

Year ultimate health care cost trend rate is achieved
$176 $27 $15

Total El

United Staten

pennian benefit eepenne

Nan-United Staten

pennian benefit eapenne

Changes in pension and other postretirement benetit liabilities recognized in

Accumulated other comprehensive loss tollow

Balance at January

Prior service cost arising

during the year

United Staten Nan-United Staten Other pnatnetirament

Assumptions used to determine expense
penaian liabilitian panninn liabilitian liabilitien

Discount rate

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Initial health care cost trend rate

$1602 $1142 358 319 248 221 Ultimate health carecosttrend rate

Year ultimate health care cost trend rate is achieaed

___________________

Other pantretirament benefita plant

Net loss arising

duringtheyear 154 551 205

Currency
translation 15

Less amounts included in

expense daring the year 138 92

2012 2011 2010

Other

Net change for the
year

Balance at December31

4.60% 5.20% 5.70%

7.60% 8.10% 8.30%

4.50% 4.50% 4.75%

2020 2020 2017

18 13 12

Assumed health care cost trend rates may have significant effect on the amounts

58 27 39 reported for the health care plans Al-percentage point change in the assumed

health care cost trend rates would have the fof owing ettects

Effect ot total service and interest cost

jj Effect on other postretirument liabilities

$1621 $1602 559 358 262 $248
Employer Contributions to Retirement Benefits Plans

Contributions to pension plans that Eaton expects to make in 2013 and made in 2012

2011 and 2010 follow

Assumptions used

determine benefit

obligation at year-end

Discount rate

Rate of compensation

increase

Assumptions used to

determine expense

Discount rate

Expected long-term return

on plan assets

Rate of compensatiou

increase
rntinrated ratirnated

United Staten nan-United Staten

penninn papmentn penninn papmentn

Medicate

ptencriptinn

Grant drag nnbnidp

228

405

255

272

279

1473

89

90

92

95

98

535

93

91

84

81

77

328 13

Other pnntnetiramant banefita plant

2012 2011 2010
Benefits Expense

The estimated pretax net amounts that will be recognized from Accumulated other

comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost in 2013 follow

3.79% 4.60% 5.20%

6.96% 7.60% 8.10%

4.53% 4.50% 4.50%
Actuarial loss

2022 2020 2020

Prior serpice cost credit

United Staten Nan-United Staten Other pnntretirement

penninn liabilitien penninn liabilitian liabilitien

Other pantretinemant

benefitn eapenne

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Servicecoot $115 $93 $80 $50 $48 $39 $17 $15 $16

lnterestcost 134 132 131 77 78 69 38 41 46

Expected return on plan assets 183 164 56 77 70 62

Amortization 118 75 53 15 13 13 12 10

184 136 108 65 69 54 62 68 72

Curtailmentloss

Settlementloss 20 17 16

Totalenpense 204 153 125 69 74 54 62 68 72
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Pension Plan Assets

Investment policies
and

strategies are developed on country specific
basis The

United States plans representing 68% of worldwide pension assets and the United

Kingdom plans representing 26% of worldwide pension assets are invested primar

ily for growth as the majority of the assets are in open plans with active participants

and ongoing accruals In general the plans have their primary allocation to diversi

fied global equities primarily through index funds in the form of common collective

trusts The United States plans target allocation is 39% United States equities 30%

non-United States equities 4% real estate primarily equity of real estate invest

ment trusts and 27% debt securities and other including
cash equivalents The

United Kingdom plans target asset allocations are 62% equities
and the remainder

in debt securities The equity risk for the plans
is managed through broad geographic

diversification and diversification across industries and levels of market capitaliza

tion The majority of debt allocations for these plans are longer duration government

including inflation protected securities and corporate debt The United States pen

sion plans are authorized to use derivatives to achieve more economically desired

market exposures and to use futures swaps and options to gain or hedge exposures

Other Postretirement Benefits Plan Assets

The VEBA trust which holds U.S other postretirement benefits plan assets has

investment guidelines that include allocations to global equities
and fixed income

investments The trusts target investment allocation is 50% diversified global

equities and 50% fixed income securities The fixed income securities are primarily

comprised of intermediate term high quality dollar denominated fixed income

instruments The equity allocation is invested in diversified
global equity index

fund in the form of collective trust

Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments included in pension and other postretirement benefits plan

assets are categorized into fair value hierarchy of three levels based on the

degree of subjectivity
inherent in the valuation methodology as follows

Level Quoted
prices unadjusted for identical assets in active markets

Level Quoted
prices

for similar assets in active markets and inputs that are

observable for the asset either directly or indirectly for substantially

the full term of the financial instrument

Level Unobservable prices or inputs

Pens/on Plans

summary of the fair value of pension plan assets at December 312012 and 2011 follows

2011

Common collective trusts

Non-United States equity and

global equities

United Stateo equity

Fixed income

Long
duration funds

Fixed income securities

United States treasuries

Real estate

Equity securities

Cash equivalents

Registered investment companies

Other

Total pension plan assets

Ouoted prices

in active markets

far identicai

assets

Tvtai Leveill

$1313 $1313

978 978

538 538

61 61

43 43

331 331

143 143

124 119

104 104

140 133

40 40

40 36

$3855 416 $3398 41

$925 $925

642 642

263 263

107 107

296 296

120 120

82 82

79 79

67 58

35 35

37 35

$2653 327 $2291 35

Ovated prices

in active markets Other

far identical vhtetvabie Unvbvetvabie

assets inpetv inpvtt

Intel ILeveill lLevei2l Level 31

75 75

67 67

Valuation Methodologies

Following is description of the valuation methodologies used for pension and other

postretirement benefits
plan assets measured at fair value There have been no

changes in the methodologies used at December 31 2012 and 2011

Common collective trusts Valued at the net unit value of units held by the trust at

year end The unit value is determined by the total value of fund assets divided by

the total number of units of the fund owned The equity investments in collective

trusts are predominantly in index funds for which the underlying securities are

actively traded in public markets based upon readily
measurable prices

Fixedincome securities These securities consist of publicly traded United

States and non-United States fixed interest obligations principally corporate and

government bonds and debentures The fair value of corporate and government

debt securities is determined through third-party pricing models that consider

various assumptions including time value yield curves credit ratings and current

market prices The Company verifies the results of trustees or custodians and

evaluates the pricing classification of these securities by performing analyses

using other third-party sources

United States treasuries Valued at the closing price of each security

Real estate andequitysecurities These securities consist of direct invest

ments in the stock of publicly traded companies Such investments are valued

based on the
closing price reported in an active market on which the individual

securities are traded As such the direct investments are classified as Level

Cash equivalents Primarily certificates of deposit commercial paper and

repurchase agreements

HegisteredinvestmentcompaniesValuedattheclosing price of the exchange

traded funds shares

OtherPrimarily insurance contracts for international plans and also futures

contracts and over-the-counter options These investments are valued based

on the closing prices of future contracts or indices as available on the Bloom-

berg or similar service and private equity investments

2012 74

2011 65

2010 33

Other Postretirement Benefits Plans

summary of the fairvalue of other postretirement benefits plan assets at Decem

ber31 2012 and 2011 follows

2012

Common collective trusts

Global equities

Fixed income securities

Cash equivalents

Total other postretirement benefits

planassets 147 142

2011

Common collective trusts

Global equities

Fined income securities

Cash equivalents

52

50

54

52

SD

54

Total other postretirement benefits

planessets
156 54 102

Other

abservabie

inpata

level

usvbtervabie

inpats

lLevei3l

2012

Common collective trusts

Non-United States equity and

global equities

United States equity

Fixed income

Long duration funds

Enchange traded funds

Fixed income securities

United States treasuries

Real estate

Equity securities

Cash equivalents

Registered investment companies

Other

Total pension plan assets

For additional information
regarding

fair value measurements see Note 11

Detined Confrihufion Plans

The Company has various defined contribution benefit plans primarily consisting
of

the Eaton Savings Plan in the United States The total contributions related to these

plans are charged to expense and were as follows
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Following
the

acquisition
ot Cooper the Cooper Retirement Savings and Stock Own

ership Plan Trust which had been Cooper shareholder purchased 3.2 million newly

issued ordinary shares of Eaton for an aggregate purchase price of $166 on Decem

ber 2012 using
the cash portion of the acquisition proceeds it received for its Coo

per shares The purchase price was $51.26 per share which was the approximate

closing per
share

price
of Eaton shares on the New York Stock Exchange on Decem

ber 2012 There were no underwriting discounts or commissions in connection

with the purchase The transaction was completed pursuant to an exemption found

under Section 42 of The Securities Act of 1933 as amended

Note Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Contingencies

Eaton is subject to broad range of claims administrative and legal proceedings

such as lawsuits that relate to contractual allegations tax audits patent infringe

ment personal injuries including asbestos claims antitrust matters and employ

ment-related matters Although it is not possible to predict
with

certainty
the

outcome or cost of these matters the Company believes they will not have mate

rial effect on the consolidated financial statements

In December 2010 Brazilian court held that judgment obtained by Brazilian

company Raysul against another Brazilian company Saturnia which was sold by

Eaton in 2006 could be enforced against Eaton Ltda This judgment is based on an

alleged
violation of an agency agreement between Raysul and Saturnia At Decem

ber 31 2012 the Company has total accrual of 79 Brazilian Reais related to this

matter $39 based on current exchange rates comprised of 6D Brazilian Reais rec

ognized in the fourth
quarter

of 2010 $30 based on current exchange rates with an

additional 19 Brazilian Reais recognized through December 312012 $9 based on

current exchange rates due to subsequent accruals for interest and inflation The

Company expects that any sum it may be required to pay in connection with this mat

ter will not exceed the amount of the recorded
liability

In 2010 Eaton filed motions

for clarification with the Brazilian court of appeals which were denied on April

2011 Eaton Holding and Eaton Ltda filed appeals on various issues to the Superior

Court of Justice in Brasilia All appeals have been accepted by the Superior Court of

Justice and will be heard in due course

On October 52006 ZF Mentor LLC and Mentor Transmission Corporation collec

tively Mentor filed an action against Eaton in the United States District Court for

Delaware The action sought damages which would be trebled under United States

antitrust laws as well as injunctive relief and costs The suit alleged that Eaton

engaged in anti-competitive conduct against Mentor in the sale of heavy-duty truck

transmissions in North America Following four week trial on liability only on Octo

ber 62009 the jury returned verdict in favor of Mentor Eaton firmly believes that

it competes fairly and honestly for business in the marketplace and that at no time

did it act in an anti-competitive manner During an earlier stage in the case the judge

concluded that damage estimates contained in
report

filed by Mentor were not

based on reliable data and the report was specifically excluded from the case On

November 32009 Eaton filed motion for judgment as matter of law and to set

aside the verdict That motion was denied on March 10 2011 On March 142011

Eaton filed motion for entry of final judgment of liability zero damages and no

injunctive relief That motion was denied on June 92011 On August 19 2011 the

Court entered final judgment of liability but awarded zero damages to plaintiffs The

Court also entered an injunction prohibiting
Eaton from

offering
rebates or other

incentives based on purchasing targets but stayed the injunction pending appeal

Eaton appealed the liabilityfinding end the injunction to the Third Circuit Court of

Appeals Mentor cross-appealed the finding of zero damages On September 28

2012 the Court of Appeals affirmed the District Courts denial of Eatons motion for

judgment as matter of law and let stand the jury verdict in favor of Mentor The

Third Circuit also ruled that the
plaintiffs damages report was properly excluded but

reversed the judgment of zero damages and ordered that the District Court must

allow plaintiffs limited opportunity to amend the damages report which may be

re-considered for reliability and admissibility Injunctive relief also was vacated An

estimate of any potential loss related to this action cannot be made at this time

Environmental Contingencies

Eaton has established policies to ensure that its operations are conducted in keeping

with good corporate citizenship and with positive commitment to the protection of

the natural and workplace environments The Companys manufacturing facilities

are required to be certified to ISO 14001 an international standard for environmental

management systems The Company routinely reviews EHS performance at each of

its facilities and continuously strives to improve pollution prevention

Eaton is involved in remedial response and voluntary environmental remediation at

number of sites including certain of its currently-owned orformerly-owned plants The

Company has also been named potentially responsible party under the United States

federal Superfund law at number of disposal sites The Company became involved in

these sites through the Companys voluntary decision in connection with business

acquisitions or as result of government action At the end of 2012 the Company was

involved with total of 142 sites worldwide including
the Superfund sites mentioned

above with none of these sites being individually significant to the Company

Remediation activities generally involving soil and/or groundwater contamination

include pre-cleanup activities such as fact finding and investigation risk assessment

feasibility study design and action planning performance where actions may range

from monitoring to removal of contaminants to installation of
longer-term

remedia

tion systems and operation and maintenance of remediation system The extent of

expected remediation activities end costs varies by site number of factors affect

the cost of environmental remediation including the number of parties involved at

particular site the determination of the extent of contamination the length of time

the remediation may require the complexity of environmental regulations and the

continuing advancement of remediation technology Taking these factors into

account Eaton has estimated the costs of remediation which will be paid overa

period of years The Company accrues an amount on an undiscounted basis consis

tent with the estimates of these costs when it is probable that
liability

has been

incurred Actual results may differ from these estimates At December 312012 and

2011 the Company had an accrual totaling $125 and $62 respectively for these costs

Based upon Eatons analysis and subject to the difficulty in estimating these future

costs the Company expects that any sum it may be required to pay in connection

with environmental matters is not reasonably possible to exceed the recorded liabil

ity by an amount that would have material effect on its financial position results of

operations or cash flows

Warranty Accruals

summary of the current and long-term warranty accruals follows

2012 2011 2010

BalanceatJanuaryl $158 $153 $147

Provision 85 98 99

Settled 84 94 91

Acquisitions and other 21 21

Balance at December 31 $180 $158 $153

Lease Commitments

Eaton leases certain real
properties

and equipment summary of minimum rental

commitments at December 31 2012 under noncancelable operating leases which

expire at various dates and in most cases contain renewal options for each of the

next five years and thereafter in the

aggreate

follow

2013 174

2014 137

2015 101

2016 73

2017 59

Thereafter 85

Total noncancelable lease commitments $629

summary of rental expense follows

2012 199

2011 194

2010 172
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Note Income Taxes

Income before income taxes and income tax expense are summarized below based

on the geographic location of the operation to which such earnings and income

taxes are attributable Certain Eaton operations outside the United States are sub

ject to both United States as well as non-United States income tax regulations As

result income before tax by location and the components of income tax expense

by taxing jurisdiction are not directly related For purposes of this note non-United

States operations include Puerto Rico

Income before incense taxes

2012 2011 2010

UnitedStates 138 375 114

Non-United States 1113 1178 922

Total incomebefore incometaxes $1251 $1553 $1036

Income too eopenoe benefit

2012 2011 2010

Current

United States

Federal $1 $85 121

Stateendlocal

Non-United States 130 186 107

Total current income tax expense 136 273 106

Deferred

United States

Federal 39 12 95

Stateandlocal 1151

Non-United States 11461 78 871

Total deferred income tax benett 105 72

Total income tax enpense $31 $201 $99

Reconciliations of income taxes from the United States federal statutory rate of

35% to the consolidated effective income tax rate follow

2012 2011 2010

Income taneo at the United States federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

United States operations

State and local income lanes

Deductible dividends

Deductible interest

Credit for research activities

Impact of Health Care Reform and Education

Reconciliation Act and pre-funding on taxation

associated mith Medicare Part

Other-net

Non-United States operations

United States foreign tan credit

Non-United States operations earnings taned at other

than the United Staten tan rate

Worldwide operations

Adjustments to tax liabilities

Adjustments to valuation allowances

Effective income tax
enpenne

rate

During 2012 income tax expense of $31 was recognized an effective tax rate of

2.5% compared to $201 for 2011 an effective tax rate of 12.9% and $99 for 2010 an

effective tax rate of 9.5% The lower effective tax rate for 2012 compared to 2011

was primarily
attributable to realization of significant international tax benefit

from actions taken after the acquisition of Cooper enhanced
foreign tax credit utili

zation lower tax provisions in several international locations associated with

restructuring actions and greater levels of income in lower tax jurisdictions

On January 22013 the President of the United States signed the American Taxpayer

Relief Act of 2012 the Act into law The Act extended certain tax benefits retroactively

to January 12012 The extension of the credit for research activities and the non-U.S

source income look-through rules will provide tax benefits of approximately $20 related

to 2012 which are required to be recognized in the first quarter of 2013

With limited exceptions no provision has been made for income taxes on undistributed

earnings of non-United States subsidiaries of appronimately $8 billion at December 31

2012 since it is the Companys intention to indefinitely reinvest undistributed earnings

of its non-United States subsidiaries It is not practicable to estimate the additional

income taxes and applicable withholding taxes that would be payable on the remit

tance of such undistributed earnings

The Companys largest growth areas that require capital are in developing markets

The cash that is permanently reinvested is typically
used to expand operations either

organically or through acquisitions in such developing markets as well as other

mature markets where the Company targets
increased market share The Companys

United States operations normally generate cash flow sufficient to satisfy United

States operating requirements Dividends paid during 2012 from non-United States

affiliates to the United States parent were not significant

Worldwide income tax payments follow

2012 254

2011 191

2010 141

Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

Components of current and long-term deferred income taxes follow

Accruals and other adjustments

Employee benefits

Depreciation and amortization

Other accruals and adjustments

Otheritems

United Staten federal income tan

Ions carryforwards

United Staten federal income tan

credit carryforwards

United Staten state and local tan Ions

carryforwardn and tax credit carryforwards

Non-United States tan Ions carryforwardn

Non-United States income tax

credit carryforwards

Valuation allowance for income tan Ions

and income tax credit carryforwardn

Other valuation allowances

Total deferred income taxes

2012 2011

current Loog-term correct Lost-term

assets and assets aod aooeto aod assets and

liabilities liabilitieo liabilities liabilities

At December 31 2012 deferred tax liabilities of $49 are included within Other

current liabilities

At the end of 2012 United States federal income tax loss carryforwards and income

tax credit carryforwards were available to reduce future United States federal income

tax liabilities These carryforwards and their
expiration

dates are summarized below

2013 zoit 2023 2128 Not

ttnreath throuth ehnooth throonh tobiectee valuation

2017 2022 2027 2t32 eopiratien allowance

United Staten federal income

taxlosscarryforwards $15

United States federal deferred

income tax assets for income

tax loss carryforwardn

United States federal income

tax credit carryferwards 51 68 37 17

92 $852 $114

100 23561 121

476 290 293

$778

498

77

145

156 251

71 65

1591 417

67 95

61 1521 441

171 55

$400 $770 $398 $692

0.6% 0.2% D.1%

10.71% 0.51% 0.61%

10.81% 10.51% 10.81%

1.0% 1.4%

0.91% 2.2%

2.7% 0.5% 1.4%

12.4% 2.31% 6.41%

14.9% 15.5% 13.9%

15.71% 10.81% 11.21%

1.3% 1.3% 4.7%

2.5% 12.9% 9.5%
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United States state and local tax loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards

with future tax benefit are also available at the end of 2012 These carryforwards

and their expiration dates are summarized below

2013 2018 2023 2028 Nut

through through through thruogh oubjoctto Vuluution

2017 2022 2027 2832 oupirution ullowunco

United States state and local

deferred income tax assets

for income tax carryforwards

-netoffederaltaxeffect 12 $15 $16

United States state and local

income tax credit

carryforwards net of

federaltaxeffect 10 15

At December31 2012 certain non-United States subsidiaries had tax loss carryfor

wards and income tax credit carryforwards that are available to offset future taxable

income These carryforwards and their expiration dates are summarized below

2013 2018 2823 2028 Nut

through through through through oobiocttu Vuluutioo

2017 2022 2027 2032 oupirution uflowuoco

Noo-United States income tax

loss carryforwards $348 $148 $32 27 $6982

Non-United States deferred

income tax assets for income

taolosscarryforwards 92 38 1444 1509

Non-United States income tax

creditcarryforwards
47 14

Recoverability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Eaton is subject to the income tax laws in the jurisdictions in which it operates In

order to determine its income tax provision for financial statement purposes Eaton

must make significant estimates and judgments about its business operations in

these
jurisdictions

These estimates and judgments are also used in determining the

deferred income tax assets and liabilities that have been recognized for differences

between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities and

income tax loss carryforwards and income tax credit carryforwards

Management evaluates the realizability
of deferred income tax assets for each of the

jurisdictions in which it operates If the Company experiences cumulative pretax

income in particular jurisdiction
in the

three-year period including
the current and

prier two years management normally concludes that the deferred income tax assets

will more likely than not be realizable and no valuation allowance is recognized

unless known or planned operating developments would lead management to con

clude otherwise However if the Company experiences cumulative pretax losses in

particular jurisdiction in the three-year period including the current and prior two

years management then considers series of factors in the determination of

whether the deferred income tax assets can be realized These factors include histor

ical operating results known or planned operating developments the period of time

over which certain temporary differences will reverse consideration of the utilization

of certain deferred income tax liabilities tax law carryback capability in the particular

country prudent and feasible tax planning strategies and estimates of future earn

ings and taxable income using the same assumptions as the Companys goodwill and

other impairment testing After evaluation of these factors if the deferred income

tax assets are expected to be realized within the tax carryforward period
allowed for

that specific country management would conclude that no valuation allowance

would be required To the extent that the deferred income tax assets exceed the

amount that is expected to be realized within the tax carryforward period for partic

ular jurisdiction management would establish valuation allowance

Applying the above methodology valuation allowances have been established for

certain United States federal state and local income as well as certain non-United

States deferred income tax assets to the extent they are not expected to be realized

within the particular tax carryforward period

Unrecognized Income Tax Benefits

Eatons historical
policy

has been to enter into tax planning strategies only if it is

more likely than not that the benefit would be sustained upon audit For example the

Company does not enter into any of the Internal Revenue Service IRS Listed Trans

actions as set forth in Treasury Regulation 1.6011-4

summary of gross unrecognized income tax benefits follows

2012 2011 2010

Balance at January 236 224 197

Increases and decreases as result of positions

taken during prier years

Transfers to valuation allowances

Other increases

Other decreases including currency translation 14 31

Balances related to acquired businesses 13 34

Increases as result of positions taken during the

current year 36 31 23

Decreases relating to settlements with tax authorities

Decreases as result of lapse of the applicable

statute of limitations

Balance at December31 $280 $236 $224

If all unrecognized tax benefits were recognized the net impact on the provision for

income tax expense would be $224

As of December31 2012 and 2011 Eaton had accrued approximately $34 and $29

respectively for the payment of worldwide interest and penalties Eaton recognizes

interest and
penalties

related to unrecognized income tax benefits in the provision for

income tax expense The Company has accrued penalties in jurisdictions where they

are automatically applied to any deficiency regardless
of the merit of the position

The resolution of the majority of Eatons unrecognized income tax benefits is depen

dent upon uncontrollable factors such as law changes the prospect of retroactive

regulations new case law the willingness of the income tax authority to settle the

issue including the timing thereof and other factors Therefore for the majority
of

unrecognized income tax benefits it is not reasonably possible to estimate the

increase or decrease in the next 12 months For each of thu unrecognized income tax

benefits where it is possible to estimate the increase or decrease in the balance

within the next 12 months the Company does not anticipate any significant change

Eaton or its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the United States and jurisdictions

outside the United States The IRS has completed their examination of Eaton Corpo

ration and Includible Subsidiaries United States income tax returns for 2005 and 2006

and has issued Statutory
Notice of

Deficiency Notice as discussed below The

statute of limitations on these tax years remains open to the extent of the tax assess

ment until the matter is resolved During 2012 the IRS began their formal examina

tion of the Eaton Corporation and Includible Subsidiaries United States income tax

returns for 2007 2008 and 2009 Eaton Corporation had
previously agreed to extend

the statute of limitations for the IRS to examine its United States income tax returns

for 20072008 and 2009 until Oecember 31 2013 The statute of limitations for tax

year 2010 is open until September 152014 The IRS examination of the Cooper Indus

tries and Includible Subsidiaries United States income tax returns for 2009 and 2010

was completed and settled during 2012 without significant effect on the consolidated

financial statements The statute of limitations remains open for tax year 2009 and

2010 until September 15 2013 and September 15 2014 respectively During 2012 the

IRS began theirformal examination of the Cooper Industries and Includible Subsidiar

ies United States income tax return for 2011 The statute of limitations for tax year

2011 is open forexamination until September 15 2015

Eaton is also under examination forthe income tax filings in various state and non-

United States
jurisdictions

With
only

few exceptions Eaton Corporation and

Includible Subsidiaries are no longer subject to state and local income tax examina

tions for years before 2008 State and local income tax returns will be reopened to

the extent of United States federal income tax adjustments if any going back to

2005 when those audit years are finalized Some states will not limit their assess

ment to the United States federal adjustments and will require the opening of the

entire tax year In addition with only few exceptions Cooper Industries and Includ

ible Subsidiaries are no longer subject to United States state and local income tax

examinations for years before 2008 With only few exceptions the non-United

States subsidiaries of both Eaton and Cooper are no longer subject to examinations

for years before 2007

At the end of the fourth quarter of 2011 the IRS issued Notice for Eaton Corpora

tion and Includible Subsidiaries 2005 and 2006 tax years The Notice proposes

assessments of $75 in additional taxes plus $52 in penalties related primarily to

transfer pricing adjustments for products manufactured in the Companys facilities

in Puerto Rico and thu Dominican Republic and sold to affiliated companies located

in the U.S net of agreed credits and deductions The Company has set its transfer
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prices for products sold between these affiliates at the same prices that the Com

pany sells such products to third parties The Notice was issued despite the IRS hav

ing previously recognized the validity ot the Companys transfer pricing methodology

by entering into two successive binding
Advance

Pricing Agreements APA5 that

approved and in fact required the application ot the Companys transfer pricing

methodology tor the ten year period ot 2001 through 2010 For the years 2001

through 2004 the IRS had previously accepted the transfer pricing methodology

related to these APAs atter comprehensive review conducted in two separate

audit cycles On December 16 2011 immediately prior to the Notice being issued

the IRS sent letter to Eaton Corporation stating
that it was canceling the APAs

The Company firmly believes that the proposed assessments are without merit The

Company also believes that it was in full compliance with the terms of the two APAs

and that the IRSs unilateral attempt to retroactively cancel these two binding con

tracts is also without merit and represents breach ot the two contracts On Febru

ary 29 2012 the Company tiled Petition with the U.S Tax Court in which it

asserted that the transter pricing established in the two APA contracts meets the

arms-length standard set by the U.S income tax law that the transfer pricing the

Company has used is in full compliance with U.S income tax laws and accordingly

that the two APA contracts should be enforced in accordance with theirterms On

June 112012 the Company filed motion for partial summary judgment with the

U.S Tax Court asking the U.S Tax Court to tind that the APAs are binding contracts

and that the IRS has the burden ot proving that it is entitled to cancel the APAs On

October 22 2012 hearing on the
partial summary judgment motion was held at

the U.S Tax Court decision on the motion is pending The Company believes that

the ultimate resolution of this matter will not have material adverse impact on its

consolidated financial statements

During 2010 Eaton Corporation received significant tax assessment in Brazil torthe

tax years 2005 through 2008 that relates to the amortization of certain goodwill gen

erated from the acquisition of third party businesses and corporate reorganizations

In this jurisdiction the Company had previously filed and received favorable tax rul

ing on the key aspects of the transaction not specifically covered by the plain meaning

of the local tax statutes The ruling request fully disclosed all
steps

of the transaction

The tax assessment is under review at the second ot three administrative appeals

levels The first administrative appeal level made 50% reduction in assessed penal

ties The Company disagrees with the assessment and intends to litigate the matter it

it is not resolved at the administrative appeals levels
Multiple

outside advisors have

stated that Brazilian tax authorities are raising the issue tor most clients with similar

facts and that the matter is expected to require at least 10 years to resolve At this

time management believes that final resolution ot the assessment will not have

material impact on the consolidated financial statements

NoteS Eaton Shareholders Equity

Eaton was incorporated under the laws ot Ireland on May 10 2012 and became the

successor registrant to Eaton Corporation on November 30 2012 in connection with

the consummation of the acquisition
of Cooper Eaton Corporation shares were can

celled and exchanged tor Eaton Corporation plc shares on one-for-one basis All the

remaining unsold shares ot Eaton Corporation were deregistered On December

2012 Eaton Corporation plc began trading on the New York stock exchange under

the same symbol used by Eaton Corporation ETN prior to November 30 2012 See

Note for additional intormation about the acquisition of Cooper

At December 31 2012 there were 750 million Eaton ordinary shares authorized $0.01

parvalue per share 470.7 million ot which were issued and outstanding Eatons

Memorandum and Articles of Association authorized 40 thousand deferred ordinary

shares 1.00 par
value

per
share and 10 thousand preferred shares $1 .00 par

value per share all of which were issued and outstanding at the end ot 2012 and 10

million serial preterred shares $0.01 parvalue per
share none of which were out

standing at the end of 2012 At December 31 2011 there were 500 million Eaton Cor

poration common shares authorized $0.50 parvalue per share 334.4 million of

which were issued and outstanding at the end of 2011 At December 31 2012 there

were 20570 holders of record of Eaton ordinary shares Additionally 27B52 current

and former employees were shareholders through participation in the Eaton Savings

Plan Eaton Personal Investment Plan Eaton Puerto Rico Retirement Savings Plan

and the Cooper Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan

Eaton Corporation had common share repurchase program 2007 Program that

authorized the repurchase of 10 million common shares In 2011 9.3 million Eaton Cor

poration common shares were repurchased under the 2007 Program in the open mar

ket at total cost of $343 On September 2B 2011 Eaton Corporations Board of

Directors approved common share repurchase program 201 Program that

replaced the 2007 Program and authorized the purchase of up to 20 million shares

not to exceed an aggregate purchase price of $1.25 billion In connection with the

acquisition of Cooper Eaton assumed Eaton Corporations share repurchase program

The ordinary shares are expected to be repurchased overtime depending on market

conditions the market
price

of
ordinary shares capital levels and other consider

ations In 2012 and 2011 no ordinary or common shares were repurchased under the

2011 Program No common shares were repurchased in the open market in 2010

Eaton has deferral plans that permit certain employees and directors to defer por

tion of their compensation trust contains $12 and $6 of ordinary shares and market

able securities as valued at December 312012 and 2011 respectively to fund

portion of these liabilities The marketable securities were included in Other assets

and the ordinary shares were included in Shareholders equity at historical cost

On February 27 2013 Eatons Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of

$0.42 per ordinary share payable on March 22 2013 to shareholders of record at the

close of business on March 112013

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss consists primarily
of net income currency translation and

related hedging instruments changes in unrecognized costs of pension and other

postretirement benefits and changes in the effective portion of open derivative con

tracts designated as cash flow hedges The following table summarizes the pre-tax

and after-tax amounts recognized in Comprehensive loss

2012 2011 2010

Pie-tax After-tax Pie-tax After-tax Ptx-tax Aftur-xxx

Csrrency
translation and

related hedging instruments 118 109 1252 1241 178 178

Pensions and other

postretirement benefits

Prior service cost arising

during the year

Net loss arising during

the year

Currency translation

Other

Amortization of prior

service cost reclassified

to earnings

10 10 128 121

16

Cash flow hedges nut

of reclassification

adjustments 17 17 128 122

Other comprehensive loss

attributable to Eaton

ordinary shareholdurs 199 126 1806 1616 $1174 $1140

The changes in Accumulated other comprehensive loss attributable to Eaton ordi

nary shareholders net of tax as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets follow

cxrrxxcy Pxxxixxx axd Arrxmxiatxd

traxxixtixx axd xthxr xthxr

related hxdaixu pxxtrxtirxrxxnx cxxh flxw cxxrprxhxxxixx

ixxtrxmxxxx bxxxtitx hedoex lxxx

January 2010 183 $11032 $11208

Comprehensive income loss 78 62 140

Decumber3l2010 261 11094 1348

Comprehensive income loss 241 353 22 616

Oecember3l2011 502 1447 115 1964

Comprehensive income lions 109 1152 17 26

December3l2012 393 $11599 $11990

386 262 1648

15 121

15

41

417 182

15 41

123

170 108 122 79 87 54

234 1521 5261 3531 961 62

Cash flow hedges

Gain Iosn on derivatives

designated as cash

flowhedgen

Changes in cash flow

hedges reclassified

to earnings
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Net Income per Ordinary Share

summary of the calculation of net income
per ordinary share attributable to

ordinary shareholders follows

2012 2Q11 20W

Shares iv milliansi

Net income attributable tc Eaton ordinary shareholders $1217 $1350 $929

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares

outstanding-diluted 350.9 342.8 339.5

Less dilutive effect of equity-based compensation 3.1 4.5 4.0

Weighted-average
number of ordinary shares

outstanding-basic 347.8 338.3 335.5

Net income
per ordinary share

Diluted 3.46 3.93 2.73

Basic 3.54 3.98 2.76

In 2012 2011 and 20102.2 million 1.5 million and 6.9 million stock options respectively

were excluded from the calculation of diluted net income
per ordinary share because

the exercise price of the options exceeded the average market price of the ordinary

shares during the period and their effect accordingly would have been antidilutive

Note 10 Equity-Based Compensation

Exchange of Equity-Based Compensation

On November 30 2012 in conjunction with the acquisition of Cooper all Eaton Corpo

ration equity-based compensation plans were assumed by Eaton subject to the same

terms and conditions except that reference to Eaton Corporation shares were changed

to Eaton shares Outstanding Eaton
Corporation

restricted share awards other share-

based awards and stock options were converted into the right to receive an equivalent

equity award from Eaton Eaton equity awards are subject to the same number of

shares terms and conditions as applicable to the original respective Eaton Corpora

tion awards See Note for additional information related to the
acquisition

of Cooper

Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units and awards RSU51 have been issued to certain employees at

fair market value at the date of grant These awards entitle the holder to receive one

ordinary share for each RSU upon vesting generally over three or four years sum

mary of the RSU activity
for 2012 follows

Wuighted

Numberuf average

restricted fair value

stuck suits per award

Ineatricted stuck uvita iv rvillixvaf

Non-vestedatJanuaryl 4.8 $33.02

Granted 1.5 49.41

Vested 12.71 25.91

Forfeited 01 41141

Non-vested at December31 3.4 $42.47

Information related to RSUs follows

2012 2011 2010

PretaxexpenseforRSUs $46 $50 539

After-tag
expense

for RSUs 30 32 25

As of December 312012 total compensation expense not yet recognized related to

non-vested RSUs was $96 and the weighted-average period
in which the expense is

expected to be recognized is 2.2 years Excess tax benefit for restricted stock units

and other equity-based compensation totaled $18 for 2012

Stock Options

Under various plans stock options have been granted to certain employees and

directors to purchase ordinary shares at prices equal to fair market value on the date

of grant Substantially all of these options vest ratably during the three-year period

following
the date of

grant
and

expire 10 years from the date of grant Compensa

tion expense is recognized for stock options based on the fair value of the
options at

the date of grant and amortized on straight-line basis over the period the employee

or director is required to provide service

The Company uses Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of

stock options The principal assumptions utilized in valuing stock options include the

expected stock price volatility based on the most recent historical period equal to

the expected life of the option the expected option life an estimate based on his

torical experience the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate an

estimate based on the yield of United States Treasury zero coupon with maturity

equal to the expected life of the option summary of the assumptions used in

determining the fairvalue of stock options follows

2012 2011 2010

Expected volatility 35% 33% 31%

Expected option life in years 5.5 5.5 5.5

Expected dividend yield 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Risk-free interest rate 1.0% to 0.9% 2.2% to 1.4% 2.4% to 1.3%

Weighted-average fair value of

stock options granted $14.08 $14.56 8.98

summary of stock option activity follows

weighted-

weighted- average

average remaivivg Aggregate

price per
csutractual ivtrivsic

sptisv Opsiuvu life iv years value

loptiuss is milliussi

Outstanding at January 2012 36.84 13.1

Granted 51.77 0.8

Exercised 31.34 13.0

Forfeited and canceled 51.21 Oil

CutstandingetDecember3l2a12 $39.45 10.8 4.2 158

ExercisebleatDecember3l2012 $37.78 9.5 3.6 155

Reserved for future grants at December31 2012 21.0

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total excess of the

$54.18 closing price
of Eaton

ordinary
shares on the last

trading day of 2012 over the

exercise price of the stock option multiplied by the related number of options out

standing and exercisable The aggregate intrinsic value is not recognized for finan

cial accounting purposes and the value changes based on the daily changes in the

fair market value of the Companys ordinary
shares

Information related to stock options follows

2012 2011 2010

Pretex expense for stock options 11

After-tax expense for stock options

Proceeds from stock options exercised 95 71 157

Income ten benefit related to stock options exercised

Tax benefit classified in operating activities in the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 13

Excess tax benefit classified in finencing activities in

the Consolideted Statements of Cash Flows 13 33

Intrinsic value of stock options exercised 60 62 98

Totalfairvalueofstockoptionsvesting 11

Stock options exercised in millions of options 3.099 2.541 5.096

As of December31 2012 total compensation expense not yet recognized related to

non-vested stock options was $12 and the weighted-average period in which the

expense is expected to be recognized is 1.8 years
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Note 11 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is measured based on an exit price representing the amount that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to satisfy liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants
Fairvalue is market-based measurement that should

be determined based on assumptions that market participants
would use in

pricing

an asset or liability As basis for considering such assumptions tair value hierar

chy is established which categorizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as fol

lows Level observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets Level

inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either

directly or indirectly and Level unobservable inputs in which there is little or no

market data which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions

summary of financial instruments recognized at fair value and the fairvalue

measurements used follows

Total

Qootad pticeo io Other

active markets for obeervable Unoboervable

identical aaseta inpoto inpots

ILeveltl lLevel2l lLevelSl

2012

Cash $577 $577

Short-term investments 527 527

Net derivative contracts 83 83

Long-term debt converted to floating

interest tates by interest rate swaps-net 87 87

2011

Cash $385 $385

Short-term investments 699 699

Net derivative contracts 46 46

Long-term debt converted to floating

interest rates by interest rate swaps-net 66 88

Eaton values its financial instruments using an industry standard market approach

in which
prices

and other relevant information is generated by market transactions

involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities No financial instruments were

recognized using
unobservable inputs

Other Fair Value Measurements

Long-term debt and the current portion of long-term debt had carrying value of

$10076 and fair value of $10793 at December 31 2012 compared to $3687 and

$4273 respectively at December 312011 The fair value of Eatons debt instru

ments was estimated using prevailing
market interest rates on debt with similar

creditworthiness terms and maturities

Short-Term Investments

Eaton invests excess cash generated from operations in short-term marketable

investments For those investments classified as available-for-sale Eaton marks

these investments to fair value with the offset recognized in Accumulated other com

prehensive loss summary of the carrying value of short-term investments follows

2012 2011

Time deposits certificate of deposits aed demand deposits with banks $293 $466

Money market investments 228 228

Other

Total short-term investments $527 $699

Note 12 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business Eaton is exposed to certain risks related to fluctua

tions in interest rates currency exchange rates and commodity prices The Company

uses various derivative and non-derivative financial instruments primarily
interest

rate swaps currency forward exchange contracts currency swaps and to lesser

extent commodity contracts to manage risks from these market fluctuations The

instruments used by Eaton are straightforward non-leveraged instruments The

counterparties to these instruments are financial institutions with strong credit rat

ings Eaton maintains control over the size of positions entered into with any one

counterparty and regularly monitors the credit rating of these institutions Such

instruments are not purchased and sold for
trading purposes

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair value and recognized as

assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Accounting for the gain or

loss resulting from the change in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument

depends on whether it has been designated and is effective as part of hedging

relationship and if so as to the nature of the hedging activity Eaton formally
docu

ments all relationships between derivative financial instruments accounted for as

designated hedges and the hedged item as well as its risk-management objective

and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction This process includes linking

derivative financial instruments to recognized asset or liability specific firm com

mitment forecasted transaction or net investment in foreign operation These

financial instruments can be designated as

Hedges of the change in the fair value of recognized
fined-rate asset or liability or

the firm commitment to acquire
such an asset or liability fair value hedge for these

hedges the gain or loss from the derivative financial instrument as well as the off

setting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recog

nized in income doring the period of change in fairvaloe

Hedges of the variable cash flows of recognized variable-rate asset or liability or the

forecasted acqoisition of such an asset or liability cash flow hedge for these hedges

the effective portion of the gain or loss from the derivative financial instrument is rec

ognized in Accumolated other comprehensive loss and reclassified to income in the

same period when the gain or loss on the hedged item is included in income

Hedges of the
currency exposure related to net investment in foreign operation

nat investment hadge for these hedges the effective portion of the gain or loss

from the derivative financial instrument is recognized in Accumulated other compre

hensive loss and reclassified to income in the same period when the gain or loss

related to the net investment in the foreign operation is included in income

The gain or loss from derivative financial instrument designated as hedge that is

effective is classified in the same line of the Consolidated Statements of Income as the

offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item The change in fair value of derivative finan

cial instrument that is not effective as hedge is immediately recognized in income

For derivatives that are not designated as hedge any gain or loss is immediately rec

ognized in income The
majority

of derivatives used in this manner relate to risks result

ing from assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currency
and certain commodity

contracts that arise in the normal course of business

Eaton uses certain of its debt denominated in foreign currency to hedge portions of its

net investments in foreign operations against foreign currency exposure net invest

ment hedges Debt denominated in foreign currency and designated as non-derivative

net investment hedging instruments was $116 and $129 at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively For additional information about debt see NoteS

Interest Rate Risk

Eaton has entered into
fixed-to-floating

interest rate swaps and floating-to-fixed

interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk of certain long-term debt These

interest rate swaps are accounted for as fair value hedges and cash flow hedges

respectively of certain long-term debt The maturity of the swap corresponds with

the maturity of the debt instrument as noted in the table of long-term debt in Note

summary of interest rate swaps outstanding at December 312012 follows

Fixed-to-F/oaring /nterest Rate Swaps

Foed Floatina

Notional interest rate interest rate easia for contracted

amoont received paid toatina intereet rate paid

200 4.90% 2.67% month LIBDR2.15%

100 5.95% 3.26% month LIBOR2.60%

150 5.30% 4.47% month LIBOR4.26%

415 5.60% 3.70% month LIBOR3.18%

300 6.95% 5.38% month LIBOR5.07%

25 8.875% 4.36% month LIBOR3.84%

25 7.625% 3.12% month LIBOR248%

50 7.65% 3.09% month Ll6OR2.57%

25 5.45% 0.88% month LIBOA0.28%

F/oaring-to-Fixed /nrerest Rare Swaps

Floatina riced

Notional interest rate interest rate Basis for contracted

amoent received paid floating interest rate received

300 0.31% 0.76% month LIBOR
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December 312012

Derivatives designated as hedges

Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps

Floating-to-fined interest rate swaps

Currency exchange contracts

Csmmodity contracts

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Cerrency exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

December3l2011

Derivatives designated as hedges

Fined-to-floating interest rate swaps

Floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps

Cerrancy exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Derivatives sot designated as hedges

Currency exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

1290

300

451

17

4991 23

19

24

$940
300

308

47

Fairvulue

Cash flow

Cash flow

Cashfiow

$2

12 mosths

12 months

to22
years

years

t2 to 36 months

12 months

12 months

12 months

The currency exchange contracts shown in the table above as derivatives not designated as hedges ore primarily contracts entered into to manage currency volatility or

exposure on intercompany sales and loans While Eaton does not elect hedge accounting treatment for these derivatives Eaton
targets managing DD% of the intercompany

balance sheet exposure to minimize the effect of currency volatility related to the movement of goods and services in the normal course of its operations This activity repre

sents the great majority of these currency exchange contracts

Amounts
recognized

in Accumulated other comprehensive loss follow

2012 2011

Gain IlannI Gain linanI Gain Ilanal Gain llnnnl

rncnnined in reclannifind 5mm recagniand in reclanaiSed tram

Accamalatad Accamulased Accumulated Accumalatad

nthar sUrer natmnr nthar

cnmpratranniva cnmprehannive camprehannive cnmprahennive

lana lana lana nan

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps 131 Ii

Currency exchange contracts 12 1101 161

Commodity contracts 1121

Derivatives designated as net

investment hedges

Cross currency swaps

Total $10 Ill $121

Gains and losses reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss to the

Consolidated Statements of Income were recognized in Cost of products sold

Amounts recognized in net income follow

2012 2011

Derivatives designated as fair value hedges

Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps 21 24

Related long-term debt converted to floating interest

rates by interest rate swaps 121 24

Gains and losses described above were recognized in Interest expense-net

Note 13 Accounts Receivable and Inventory

Accounts Receivable

Eaton performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers and maintains sufficient

allowances for potential credit losses The Company evaluates the collectability of its

accounts receivable based on the
length

of time the receivable is
past

due and any

anticipated future write-off based on historic experience Accounts receivable ba
ances are written off

against an allowance for doubtful accounts after final determi

nation of uncollectability has been made Accounts receivable are net of an allowance

for doubtful accounts of $53 and $48 at December 312012 and 2011 respectively

Inventory

Inventory is carried at lower of cost or market Inventory in the United States is gener

ally accounted for using the last-in first-out LIEU method Remaining United States

and non-United States inventory is accounted for using the first-in first-out FIFD

method Cost components include ruw materials purchased components direct labor

indirect labor utilities depreciation inbound
freight charges purchasing and receiv

ing costs inspection costs warehousing costs and costs of the distribution network

The components of inventory follow

2012 2011

Raw materials 922 106

Work-in-process 426 272

Finished goods 1134 867

Inventory at FIFO 2482 1845

Excess of FIFO over LIFO cost 133 144

Total inventory $2349 $1701

Inventory at FIFO accounted for using the LIED method was 43% and 42% at the end

of2Ol2and 2011 respectively

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Derivaflive Financial Statement Impacts

The fairvalue of derivative financial instruments recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets folows

Other Other Other nther

Nntiaaal carmeat lang-term current lang-term Type aS

anraaar annarn aaaeaa liabilitian liabiliaiaa hedna

Total

$2

11

Tarm

Total

$2

Fair value

Cashflow

Cash flow

Cash flow

6monthsto2l years

year

l2to3Smonths

12 months

Total

85

85

31

31

68

68 16

14

12

26Total

$4

2954 18

57

18
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Note 14 Business Segment and Geographic Region Information

Operating segments are defined as components ot an enterprise about which separate

financial information is available that is evaluated on regular
basis

by
the chief oper

ating decision maker or decision making group in deciding
bow to allocate resources to

an individual segment and in assessing perfurmance Eatons segments are as follows

Electrical Americas and Electrical Rest of World

The Electrical segments are global leaders in electrical components and systems for

power quality
distribution and control Products include circuit breakers switchgear

uninterruptible power systems power distribution units panelboards loadcenters

motor controls meters sensors relays and inverters The principal markets for the

Electrical Americas and Electrical Rest of World segments are industrial institutional

governmental utility commercial residential and information technology These prod

ucts are used wherever there is demand for electrical power in commercial buildings

data centers residences apartment and office buildings hospitals factories and utili

ties The segments share several common global customers but large number of

customers are located regionally
Sales are made directly to original equipment manu

facturers and through distributors resellers and manufacturers representatives

Cooper

The Cooper segment manufactures markets and sells electrical products including cir

cuit protection hazardous duty electrical equipment intrinsically safe explosion-proof

instrumentation emergency lighting
fire detection and mass notification systems

security products support systems enclosures specialty connectors wiring devices

plugs receptacles switches lighting
fixtures and controls The segment also manufac

tures markets and sells products for use by utilities and in industry
for electrical power

transmission and distribution including distribution switchgear transformers trans

former terminations and accessories capacitors voltage regulators surge arresters

energy automation solutions and other related power systems components The princi

pal markets for the Cooper segment are industrial institutional governmental utility

commercial residential and information technology These customers operate globally

Coopers products are sold and serviced through variety
of channels

Hydraulics

The Hydraulics segment is
global

leader in hydraulics components systems and ser

vices for industrial and mobile equipment Eaton offers wide range of power prod

ucts including pumps motors and
hydraulic power units broad range of controls and

sensing products including valves cylinders and electronic controls full range of

fluid conveyance products including
industrial and

hydraulic hose fittings and assem

blies thermoplastic hose and tubing couplings connectors and assembly equipment

filtration systems solutions heavy-duty drum and disc brakes and
golf grips

The prin

cipal
markets for the Hydraulics segment include oil and gas renewable energy

marine agriculture construction mining forestry utility
material handling truck and

bus machine tools molding primary metals and power generation Key manufactur

ing customers in these markets and other customers are located globally Products are

sold and serviced through variety of channels

Aerospace

The Aerospace segment is leading global supplier of aerospace fuel hydraulics and

pneumatic systems for commercial and military use Products include hydraulic

power generation systems for aerospace applications including pumps motors

hydraulic power units hose and fittings electro-hydraulic pumps and power and

load management systems controls and sensing products including valves cylin

ders electronic controls electromechanical actuators sensors displays and panels

aircraft flap and slat systems and nose wheel steering systems fluid conveyance

products including hose thermoplastic tubing fittings adapters couplings sealing

and ducting and fuel systems including fuel pumps sensors valves adapters and

regulators The principal markets for the Aerospace segment are manufacturers of

commercial and military aircraft and related after-market customers These manu

facturers and other customers operate globally Products are sold and serviced

through variety of channels

Truck

The Truck segment is leader in the design manufacture and marketing of com

plete line of drivetrain and powertrain systems and components for performance

fuel economy and safety for commercial vehicles Products include transmissions

clutches and hybrid power systems The principal
markets for the Truck segment

are original equipment manufacturers and after-market customers of heavy-

medium- and light-duty trucks and passenger cars These manufacturers and other

customers are located globally

Automotive

The Automotive segment is leading supplier of automotive drivetrain and pow

ertrain systems for performance fuel economy and safety including
critical compo

nents that reduce emissions and fuel consumption and improve stability

performance fuel economy and safety of cars light trucks and commercial vehicles

Products include superchargers engine valves and valve actuation systems cylin

der heads locking
and limited slip differentials transmission and engine controls

fuel vapor components compressor control clutches for mobile refrigeration
fluid

connectors and hoses for air
conditioning

and power steering underhood plastic

components fluid conveyance products including hose thermoplastic tubing fit

tings adapters couplings and sealing products for the
global

automotive industry

The principal markets for the Automotive segment are original equipment manufac

turers and aftermarket customers of
light-duty trucks SUVs CUVs and passenger

cars These manufacturers and other customers are located globally

Other Information

No single customer represented greater than 10% of net sales in 2012 2011 or

2010 respectively

The accounting policies of the business segments are generally the same as the

policies described in Note except that inventory and related cost of products

sold of the segments are accounted for using the FIFO method and operating profit

only reflects the service cost component related to pensions and other postretire

mont benefits Intersegment sales and transfers are accounted for at the same

prices as if the sales and transfers were made to third parties These intersegment

sales are eliminated in consolidation

For purposes of business segment performance measurement the Company does

not allocate items that are of non-operating nature or are of corporate or func

tional governance nature Corporate expenses consist of transaction costs associ

ated with the acquisition of certain businesses and corporate office expenses

including compensation benefits occupancy depreciation and other administra

tive costs Identifiable assets of the business segments exclude goodwill other

intangible assets and general corporate assets which principally consist of cash

short-term investments deferred income taxes certain accounts receivable cer

tain property plant and equipment and certain other assets See Note for addi

tional information about business acquisitions

Geographic Region Information

Net sales are measured based on the geographic destination of sales Long-lived

assets consist of property plant and equipment-net

Net sales

United States

Canada

Latin America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Total

Long-lived assets

United States

Canada

Latin America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Total

2012 2011 2010

7789 7165 6166

918 815 666

1588 1952 1629

3997 4g92 3532

2019 2025 1722

$16311 $16049 $13715

2038 1227 1102

32 27 25

337 247 275

834 649 664

636 452 411

3877 2602 2477
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BusinessSegmentlnformation 2012 2011 2010

Net sales

ElectricalAmericas 4517 4192 3675

Electrical Rest of World 2731 2984 2748

Cooper 470

Hydraulics 2960 2835 2212

Aerospace 1719 1648 1536

Truck 2309 2644 1997

Automotive 1605 1746 1547

Total net sales $16311 $16049 $13715

Segment operating profit

Electrical Americas 749 605 529

Electrical Rest of World 249 278 264

Cooper 66

Hydraulics
369 438 279

Aerospace 213 244 220

Truck 420 486 245

Automotive 150 209 163

Total segment operating profit 2216 2260 1700

Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets 195 190 181

Interestexpense-net 208 118 136

Pension and other
postretirement

benefits expense 162 142 120

Inventory step-up adjustment 42

Other cOrporate expense-net 358 252 227

Income before income taxes 1251 1553 1036

Incometaxexpense 31 201 99

Net income 1220 1352 937

Less net income for noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders 1217 1350 929

Business segment operating profit was reduced by acquisition integration charges as follows

2012 2011 2010

Electrical Americas

Electrical Rest of World 33

Cooper

Hydraulics 16

Aerospace

Total 33 14 40

Corporate acquisition integration charges primarily related to the acquisition of Cooper totaled $11 in 2012 and are included above in Other corporate expense-net Acquisi

tion-related transaction costs such as investment banking legal
and other

professional fees are included above in Interest expense-net and Other corporate expense-net In

2012 these charges totaled $178 and were related primarily to the acquisition of Cooper There were no significant Corporate acquisition-related transaction costs in 2011 or

2010 See Note for additional information about acquisition integration charges and transaction costs
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BusinessSegmentlnformation
2012 2011 2010

Identifiable assets

ElectricalAmericas 1480 1364 1272

Electrical Rest of World 1531 1531 1630

Cooper 2867

Hydraulics
1427 1265 1080

Aerospace 806 754 726

Truck 819 920 866

Automotive 879 863 904

Total identifiable assets 9809 6697 6478

Goodwill 14396 5537 5454

Other intangible assets 6779 2192 2272

Corporate 4864 3447 3048

Total assets $35848 $17873 $17252

Capital expenditures for property plant and equipment

Electrical Americas 87 65 59

Electrical Rest of World 51 52 49

Cooper 17

Hydraulics
60 70 45

Aerospace 27 21 21

Truck 69 80 59

Automotive 79 92 61

Total 390 380 294

Corporate 203 188 100

Total expenditures for property plant and equipment 593 568 394

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Electrical Americas 54 53 55

Electrical Rest of World 55 58 56

Cooper 11

Hydraulics
61 54 52

Aerospace 26 26 25

Truck 66 74 76

Automotive 70 73 77

Total 343 338 341

Corporate 38 29 28

Total depreciation of property plant and equipment 381 367 369
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Amounts are in millions of dollars or shares unless indicated otherwise per share data

assume dilution

Company Overview

Eaton
Corporation plc Eaton or Company was incorporated under the laws of Ireland

on May 102012 and became the successor registrant to Eaton Corporation on Novem

ber 30 2012 in connection with the consummation of the acquisition of Cooper Indus

tries plc Cooper which is further described below Eaton is diversified power

management company providing energy-efficient
solutions that

help
its customers

effectively manage electrical hydraulic and mechanical power With 2012 net sales of

$16.3 billion the Company is global technology leader in electrical products systems

and services for power quality distribution and control power transmission lighting

and wiring products hydraulics components systems and services for industrial and

mobile equipment aerospace fuel hydraulics and pneumatic systems for commercial

and military use and truck and automotive drivetrain and powertrain systems for per

formance fuel economy and safety Eaton has approximately 103000 employees in

over 50 countries and sells products to customers in 175 countries

On November 302012 Eaton Corporation acquired Cooper for purchase price
of

$13192 The total purchase price
is comprised of cash totaling $6543 and Eaton

share consideration valued at $6649 Cooper is diversified global manufacturer of

electrical products and systems with brands including Bussmann electrical and

electronic fuses Crouse-Hinds and CEAG explosion-proof electrical equipment Halo

and Metalux
lighting fixtures and Kyle and McGraw-Edison power systems products

Cooper had annual sales of $5409 for 2011 Eatons Consolidated Financial State

ments include Coopers results of operations from November 30 2012 through

December 312012 Net sales and segment operating profit attributable to Cooper

during this period and included in Eatons Consolidated Financial Statements for the

year ended December 312012 total $470 and $66 respectively

In addition to Cooper Eaton acquired certain other businesses during 2012 The Con

solidated Statements of Income include the results of these other businesses from

the dates of the transactions or formation For additional information related to

acquisitions
and complete list of business acquisitions and joint ventures see

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Eatons operating segments are Electrical Americas Electrical Rest of World Coo

per Hydraulics Aerospace Truck and Automotive These segments are components

of the Company with separate financial information that is evaluated on regular

basis by the chief operating decision maker in determining how to allocate resources

The Cooper results of operations for the period subsequent to acquisition did not

have significant impact on Eatons consolidated results of operations for 2012

Therefore Cooper segment information is not presented in the Business Segment

Results of Operations in this Managements Discussion and Analysis

During 2D13 as result of the reorganization of Eatons businesses Eatons

reportable segments will be Electrical Products and Electrical Systems and Ser

vices which will include legacy Eaton and Cooper electrical businesses Hydrau

lics Aerospace and Vehicle which will include truck and automotive drivetrain and

powertrain systems businesses

Summary of Results of Operations

During 2012 Eatons markets grew more slowly than had been expected at the

start of the year as result
largely

of economic and
political

uncertainties in Europe

China and the United States Due to the continued uncertainty about future growth

among other factors the Company undertook certain restructuring activities in the

fourth quarter of 2D12 which resulted in charges totaling $50 Additional information

related to restructuring activities is presented in Note of the Notes to the Consoli

dated Financial Statements

For 2013 the Company expects growth of 2% to 3% in its end markets See 2013 For

ward-Looking Perspective for Eatons forward-looking guidance in Managements

Discussion and Analysis

summary of Eatons Net sales Net income attributable to Eaton
ordinary

share

holders and Net income
per ordinary share-diluted follows

2012 2011 2010

Netsales $16311 $16049 $13715

Net income attributable te Eaton ordinary shareholders 1217 1350 929

Netincomeperordinaryshare-diluted 3.46 3.93 2.73

Results of Operations

The following discussion of Consolidated Financial Results and Business Segment

Results of Operations includes certain non-t3AAP financial measures These financial

measures include operating earnings operating earnings per ordinary share and oper

ating profit before acquisition integration charges and transaction costs each of which

excludes amounts that differ from the most directly comparable measure calculated in

accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP reconciliation

of each of these financial measures to the most directly comparable GAAP measure is

included in the table below and in the discussion of the operating results of each busi

ness segment Management believes that these financial measures are useful to inves

tors because they exclude transactions of an unusual nature allowing
investors to more

easily compare Eatons financial performance period to period Management uses this

information in monitoring and evaluating the on-going performance of Eaton and each

business segment For additional information regarding acquisition integration charges

and transaction costs see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Results

Netsales $16311 2% $16049 17% $13715

Gross profit 4863 2% 4788 17% 4082

Percentofnetsales 29.8% 29.8% 29.8%

Incomebeforeincometaxes 1251 191% 1553 50% 1036

Net inceme 1220 101% 1352 44% 937

Less net income fer

noncontrolling interests

Net income attribetable to

Eaton ordinary
shareholders

Excluding acquisition integration

charges and transaction costs

after-tax

Operating earnings

Net income per ordinary

share diluted

Excluding per share impact
of

acquisition integration

charges and transaction costs

lefter-tax

Operating earnings per

ordinary share $3.94

Net Sales

Net sales in 2012 increased by 2% compared to 2011 due to an increase of 5% from

acquisitions of businesses partially offset by decrease of 3% from the impact of

currency exchange Core sales growth was fiat in 2012 compared to 2011 due to fiat

market growth Net sales in 2011 increased by 17% compared to 2010 due to an

increase of 13% in core sales an increase of 2% from the
positive impact of currency

exchange and an increase of 2% from acquisitions of businesses Core sales growth

was driven by increased demand in end markets in 2011 compared to 2010

Gross Profit

Gross
profit

increased by 2% in 2012 and by 17% in 2011 when compared to 2011 and

2010 respectively Gross profit grew in line with the higher sales volumes and cer

tain changes to the Companys cost structure implemented in 2009 and 2010 Gross

profit growth during 2012 was constrained by the fiat core sales growth as noted

above Eaton has maintained gross profit margins at 29.8% for all periods presented

Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate for 2012 was 2.5% compared to 12.9% for 2011 and

9.5% for 2010 The lower effective tax rate for 2012 compared to 2011 was primar

ily
attributable to realization of

significant
international tax benefit from actions

taken after the acquisition of Cooper enhanced foreign tax credit utilization lower

tax provisions in several international locations associated with restructuring

actions and
greater

levels of income in lower tax jurisdictions The higher effective

tax rate for 2011 and 2010 was primarily attributable to greater levels of income in

high tax
jurisdictions particularly in the United States and Brazil due to continued

improvements in market conditions For additional information on income taxes see

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

change change

frem frsm

zen zen ztrr 2eit 2010

81

1217 101% 1350 45% 929

167

1384

10

2% $1360

27

42% 956

3.46 12% 3.93 44% 2.73

0.48 0.03

111% 3.96

0.08

41% 2.81

60 EATON 2012 Annual Report



Net Income

Net income attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders ot $1217 in 2012 decreased

10% compared to Net income attributable to Eaton ordinary shareholders of $1350 in

2011 and Net income per ordinary share of $3.46 in 2012 decreased 12% from Net

income per ordinary share ot $3.93 in 2011 The decrease was primarily due to transac

tion costs incurred associated with the acquisition of Cooper and restructuring charges

recognized in the fourth
quarter

of 2012 to address soft economic conditions and

improve the efficiency of the Companys businesses Partially offsetting these costs

were certain favorable tax benefits and factors as noted above Net income attribut

able to Eaton ordinary shareholders of $1350 in 2011 increased 45% compared to Net

income attributable to Eaton ordinary
shareholders of $929 in 2010 and Net income

per

ordinary share of $3.93 in 2011 increased 44% over Net income per ordinary share of

$2.73 in 2010 The increases were primarily
due to higher

sales and the factors noted

above that affected
gross profit For additional information related to transaction costs

and restructuring charges see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Business Segment Results of Operations

The
following

is discussion of Net sales operating profit and operating profit

margin by business segment which includes discussion of operating profit
and

operating profit margin before acquisition integration charges For additional infor

mation related to integration charges see Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements For additional information related to acquired businesses see Note

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ElectricalAmericas

2012 2011 zero

Netsales $4517 8% $4192 14% $3675

Operating profit
749 24% 605 14% 529

Operating margin 16.6% 14.4% 14.4%

Acquisition integration charges

Before acquisition integration charges

Operating profit 756 23% 613 15% 531

Operating margin 16.7% 14.6% 14.4%

Net sales increased 8% in 2012 compared to 2011 due to an increase of 7% in core

sales and an increase of 2% from the
acquisition

of businesses partially offset by

decrease of 1% from the impact of currency exchange The increase in net sales in 2012

was due to continued growth in markets served by the Electrical Americas segment

with particularly strong growth in residential and non-residential construction markets

Net sales increased 14% in 2011 compared to 2010 due to an increase of 11% in core

sales an increase of 2% from the acquisition
of businesses and an increase of 1% from

the favorable impact of
currency exchange The increase in net sales in 2011 was due to

strong growth particularly
in industrial controls and nonresidential electrical markets

Operating profit before acquisition integration charges in 2012 increased 23% com

pared to 2011 Operating margin before acquisition integration charges increased 2.1

percentage points from 14.6% in 2011 to 16.7% in 2012 The increase in operating mar

gin in 2012 was primarily due to benefits from higher sales volumes lower commodity

costs and commodity hedge contract losses in 2011 that did not repeat in 2012 Oper

ating profit
before

acquisition integration charges in 2011 increased 15% compared to

2010 Operating margin before acquisition integration charges increased 0.2 percent

age points from 14.4% in 2010 to 14.6% in 2011 The increase in operating margin in

2011 was largely
due to higher net sales volumes as noted above partially offset by

higher raw materials and commodity costs including losses associated with commod

ity hedge contracts due to
significant

declines in metal prices in 2011

Electrical Rest of World

2011

Netsales $2731 181% $2984 9% $2748

Operating profit
249 1101% 278 5% 264

Operating margin 9.1% 9.3% 9.6%

Acquisition integration charges 33

Before acquisition integration charges

Operating profit 257 181% 280 161% 297

Operating margin 9.4% 9.4% 10.8%

Net sales decreased 8% in 2012 compared to 2011 due to decrease in core sales of

5% and decrease of 4% from the impact of
currency exchange partially offset by an

increase of 1% from the acquisition of businesses The decrease in net sales in 2012

reflects lower sales volumes from the continued weakness in Europe and China Net

sales increased 9% in 2011 compared to 2010 due to an increase of 6% from the favor

able impact of
currency exchange an increase of 2% from the acquisition of businesses

and an increase in core sales of 1% Sales growth in 2011 was negatively impacted by

economic volatility in Europe and restrictions on credit availability in China

Operating profit before acquisition integration charges in 2012 decreased 8% com

pared to 2011 Operating margin before
acquisition integration charges remained fiat

at 9.4% in 2012 and 2011 The operating margin in 2012 was positively impacted by

lower commodity costs offset by lower sales volumes from the continued weakness

in Europe and China as described above and restructuring activities taken during

the fourth
quarter

of 2012 in response to this continued weakness Operating profit

before acquisition integration charges in 2011 decreased 6% compared to 2010

Operating margin before
acquisition integration charges decreased 1.4 percentage

points from 10.8% in 2010 to 9.4% in 2011 The decrease in operating margin in 2011

was primarily due to decline in the residential solar market higher raw material

and commodity costs and losses associated with commodity hedge contracts due

to significant
declines in metal

prices
in 2011

Hydraulics

2t12 znrr 2010

Net sales $2960 4% $2835 28% $2212

Operating profit 369 1161% 438 57% 279

Operating margin 12.5% 15.4% 12.6%

Acquisition integration charges 16

Before acquisition integration charges

Operating profit 385 1131% 442 58% 280

Operating margin 13.0% 15.6% 12.7%

Net sales in 2012 increased 4% compared to 2011 due to an increase of 9% from the

acquisition of businesses partially offset by decrease in core sales of 3% and

decrease of 2% from the impact of currency exchange Global hydraulics markets in

2012 were negatively impacted by slowdown in capital expenditures particularly

in the U.S and China construction equipment industries as economic uncertainties

in both countries caused postponement of certain customer purchases Net sales in

2011 increased 28% compared to 2010 due to higher core sales of 20% an increase

of 5% from the acquisition of businesses and an increase of 3% from the favorable

impact of currency exchange The increase in core sales in 2011 was driven
primarily

by global hydraulics markets which grew particularly rapidly in the United States

Operating profit
before

acquisition integration charges in 2012 decreased 13% com

pared to 2011 Operating margin before acquisition integration charges decreased 2.6

percentage points from 15.6% in 2011 to 13.0% in 2012 The decrease in operating mar

gin in 2012 was primarily due to lower sales volumes resulting from decrease in core

sales of 3% as noted above and restructuring actions taken during the fourth
quarter

of

2012 in response to continued weakness in hydraulics markets particularly in Europe

Operating profit before acquisition integration charges in 2011 increased 58% compared

to 2010 Operating margin before acquisition integration charges increased 2.9 percent

age points
from 12.7% in 2010 to 15.6% in 2011 The change in

operating margin in 2011

was primarily due to the same respective factors impacting net sales as noted above

Aerospace

2012 201 2010

Netsales $1719 4% $1648 7% $1536

Opereting profit 213 1131% 244 11% 220

Operating margin 12.4% 14.8% 14.3%

Acquinition integration chergeo

Before acquisition integration charges

Operating profit 213 1131% 244 9% 224

Operating margin
12.4% 14.8% 14.6%

chanue

from

zarr

chango

from

2010

change

from

2011

change

from

2010

channe

from

2012 2011

charge

from

2010 2010

chanen

from

2t1

chanen

from

2cr
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Net sales in 2012 increased 4% compared to 2011 due to an increase in core sales of

5% partially
offset by decrease of 1% from the impact of currency exchange The

increase in net sales in 2012 reflects continued strength in the commercial OEM mar

ket partially
offset by decreased demand in the military OEM market Net sales in

2011 increased 7% compared to 2010 due to higher core sales of 6% and an increase

of 1% from the favorable impact of currency exchange Growth in 2011 was primarily

driven by higher customer demand in the commercial OEM and aftermarket

Operating profit in 2012 decreased 13% compared to 2011 Operating margin

decreased 2.4 percentage points from 14.8% in 2011 to 12.4% in 2012 The decrease in

operating margin in 2012 was primarily due to shift in product mix to higher percent

of lower-margin commercial OEM business and the impact of restructuring actions

taken during the fourth quarter of 2012 to improve the efficiency of the business Oper

ating profit before acquisition integration charges in 2011 increased 9% compared to

2010 Operating margin before acquisition integration charges increased 0.2 percent

age points from 14.6% in 2010 to 14.8% in 2011 The increase in
operating margin in

2011 was primarily
due to

higher
sales volumes and growth in the commercial markets

noted above partially offset by increased expenses stemming from changes in scope

program delays and execution of new customer programs during the first half of 2011

Truck

2011 2010

Netsales $2309 1131% $2644 32% $1997

Operating profit 420 1141% 486 98% 245

Operating margin 18.2% 18.4% 12.3%

Net sales decreased 13% in 2012 compared to 2011 due to decrease in core sales of

7% and decrease of 6% from the impact of
currency exchange The decrease in core

sales in 2012 was primarily due to lower sales volumes in the NAFTA Class market

related to the uncertain economic outlook in the U.S as well as lower sales in the Bra

zil truck and bus markets Net sales increased 32% in 2011 compared to 2010 due to an

increase in core sales of 29% and an increase of 3% from the favorable impact of cur

rency exchange The increase in core sales in 2011 reflects the rebound in global end

markets from 2010 and in particular strong growth in the NAFTA Class truck market

Operating profit in 2012 decreased 14% compared to 2011 Operating margin was rel

atively flat decreasing only 0.2 percentage points from 18.4% in 2011 to 18.2% in

2012 Operating margin in 2012 was impacted by the factors noted above and certain

restructuring activities taken daring the fourth
quarter

of 2012 in response to weaker

markets Operating profit in 2011 increased 98% compared to 2010 Operating mar

gin
increased 6.1 percentage points

from 12.3% in 2010 to 18.4% in 2011 The

increase in operating margin in 2011 was primarily due to higher sales volumes and

the resulting manufacturing efficiencies

Automotive

201 2010

Net sales $1605 181% $1746 13% 1547

Operating profit 150 1281% 209 28% 163

Operating margin 9.3% 12.0% 10.5%

Net sales decreased 8% in 2012 compared to 2011 due to decrease of 4% from the

impact of currency exchange 3% decrease related to business divestiture in

2011 and decrease in core sales of 1% The decrease in core sales in 2012 is pri

marily due to lower sales volumes from continued weakness in Europe Net sales

increased 13% in 2011 compared to 2010 due to an increase in core sales of 12% and

an increase of 2% from the favorable impact of currency exchange offset by 1%

decrease related to business divestiture The increase in core sales in 2011 is due

to the rebound in
global

automotive markets from 2010

Operating profit in 2012 decreased 28% compared to 2011 Operating margin

decreased 2.7 percentage points from 12.0% in 2011 to 9.3% in 2012 The decrease

in operating margin in 2012 was primarily due to the continued sales weakness in

Europe and the related restructuring actions taken during the fourth quarter of 2012

The Company also incurred additional
start-up

costs associated with new facility in

China in 2012 Operating profit in 2011 increased 28% compared to 2010 Operating

margin increased 1.5 percentage points
from 10.5% in 2010 to 12.0% in 2011 The

increase in operating margin in 2011 was primarily due to higher sales volumes

2012 2011

Amortization ot intangible assets 195 3% 190 5% 181

Interest expense-net 208 76% 118 131% 136

Pension and other postretirement

benefitsexpense 162 14% 142 18% 120

Inventory step-up adiustment
42 NM NM

Other corporate expense-net 358 42% 252 1% 227

Total corporate expense $965 36% $707 6% $664

Total Corporate expense increased 36% in 2012 to $965 from $707 in 2011 due to 42%

increase in Other corporate expense-net primarily related to transaction and other

costs associated with the acquisition of Cooper 76% increase in Interest expense-net

primarily related to financing activities associated with the acquisition
of Cooper and

14% increase in Pension and other postretirement benefits expense primarily related to

changes in the discount rate The inventory step-up adjustment of $42 in 2012 is related

to purchase price accounting adjustments associated with the acquisition
of Cooper

Total Corporate expense increased 6% in 2011 to $707 from $664 in 2010 due to an 18%

increase in Pension and other
postretirement

benefits expense primarily related to

changes in the discount rate and asset return assumptions an 11% increase in Other

corporate expense-net due to an adjustment to the LIFO reserve and higher general cor

porate expense as Eaton continued to add resources to support its growth and 5%

increase in Amortization of intangible assets resulting from acquisitions of businesses

2913 Forward-Looking Perspective

As of early February Eaton anticipates that its end markets for 2013 will grow 2% to 3%

Eaton anticipates that core sales in 2013 will grow by approximately $900 compared to

2012 The incremental sales in 2013 from recent acquisitions of businesses are expected

to total $6 billion Overall Eaton anticipates its Net sales in 2013 will grow by 42% com

pared to 2012 End market growth by segment in 2013 is expected to be as follows

Electrical Products 3%

Electrical Systems and Services 4%

Hydraulics4%

Aerospace 2%

Vehicle2%

Liquidity Capital Resources and Changes in Financial Condition

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Eatons objective is to finance its business through operating cash flow and an appro

priate mix of equity and long-term and short-term debt By diversifying its debt matu

rity structure Eaton reduces liquidity risk The Company maintains access to the

commercial paper markets through revolving credit facilities During June 2012 the

Company refinanced $500 three-year revolving credit facility and $500 five-year

revolving credit facility with $750 three-year revolving
credit facility that expires in

2015 and $750 five-year revolving credit facility that expires
in 2017 respectively

The Company also maintains $500 revolving credit facility that expires in 2016 The

2012 refinancings increased long-term revolving credit facilities to $2000 from $1500

These facilities support Eatons commercial paper borrowings There were no borrow

ings outstanding under these revolving credit facilities at December 31 2012 Eatons

non-United States operations also had available short-term lines of credit of approxi

mately $2099 at December 312012 Over the coarse of year cash short-term invest

ments and short-term debt may fluctuate in order to manage global liqaidity Eaton

believes it has the operating flexibility cash flow cash and short-term investment bal

ances and access to capital markets in excess of the liquidity necessary to meet future

operating needs of the business as well as scheduled payments of long-term debt

During June 2012 the Company received proceeds totaling $600 from the private

issuance of notes and during November 2012 Eaton received proceeds totaling

$6522 to finance the cash portion of the acquisition
of Cooper Financing

activities

related to acquiring Cooper were comprised of the issuance of senior notes totaling

$4900 and borrowing $1669 on $6.75 billion capacity bridge facility At Decem

ber 312012 $669 remained outstanding on the bridge facility borrowing and on Feb

ruary 12013 Eaton repaid the outstanding balance On November 302012 and

January 82013 Eaton Corporation and Cooper respectively each issued guaran

tees on all material outstanding debt of the other

For additional information on financing transactions and debt see Notes to the Con

solidated Financial Statements

Corporate Expense
change
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Change
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2010 2s10

Change
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2012 2011
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Eatons credit facilities and indentures governing certain long-term debt contain var

ious covenants the violation of which would limit or preclude the use of the credit

facilities for future borrowings or might accelerate the maturity of the related out

standing borrowings covered by the indentures At Eatons present credit rating

level the most restrictive financial covenant provides that the ratio of secured debt

or lease payments due under sale and leaseback transaction to adjusted consoli

dated net worth or consolidated net tangible assets in each case as defined in the

relevant credit agreement or indenture may not exceed 10% In each case the ratio

was substantially below the required threshold In addition Eaton is in compliance

with each of its debt covenants for all periods presented

Undistributed Assets of Non-U.S Subsidiaries

At December 312012 approximately 84% of the Companys consolidated cash and

short-term investments resided in non-U.S locations These funds are considered

permanently reinvested to be used to expand operations either organically or

through acquisitions outside the U.S The largest growth areas that are expected to

require capital are in developing markets The Companys U.S operations generate

cash flow sufficient to satisfy U.S operating requirements and service its debt The

Company does not intend to repatriate any significant amounts of cash to the U.S in

the foreseeable future

Changes in Financial Position

During 2012 Eatons net assets increased $7617 to $15086 at December 312012

from $7469 at December 312011 primarily
due to the acquisition ot Cooperwhich

had substantial impact on Eatons Consolidated Balance Sheet Increases in Good

will Other intangible assets and Net property plant and equipment totaling $8859

$4587 and $1275 respectively were the primary factors driving higher net assets

in 2012 These increases were partially offset by higher obligations primarily associ

ated with higher debt levels and deferred tax liabilities both of which were also due

to the acquisition
of Cooper Long-term debt levels increased $6396 to $9762 at

December 31 2012 from $3366 at December 31 2011 due to the financing activities

noted above and long-term debt
totaling $1100 assumed by Eaton in the acquisition

of Cooper Additionally deferred tax liabilities increased $1582 to $2024 at Decem

ber 31 2012 from $442 at December 31 2011 primarily
associated with the deferred

tax impacts of purchase price accounting adjustments made to Coopers opening

balance sheet For additional information related to the acquisition of Cooper see

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sources and Uses of Cash Flow

Operating Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1664 in 2012 an increase of $416

compared to $1248 in 2011 Operating cash flows in 2012 were primarily impacted

by lower working capital requirements compared to 2011 and the absence of contri

butions to other postretirement benefits
plans totaling $154 that were made in 2011

partially offset by lower net income in 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1248 in 2011 decrease of $34 com

pared to $1282 in 2010 Operating cash flows in 2011 were primarily impacted by

higher
net income in 2011 which was more than offset by increased contributions to

defined benefits plans particularly contributions of $154 to other postretirement

benefits plans that were not contributed in 2010 and higher working capital require

ments compared to 2010

Investing Cash Flow

Net cash used in investing activities was $6972 in 2012 an increase of $6172 com

pared to $800 in 2011 The increase in 2012 was principally due to usage of $6936

related to the acquisitions of businesses the
largest

of which was Cooper partially

offset by cash proceeds of $603 from the sale of short-term investments compared

to sales of $103 in 2011 Capital expenditures were $593 in 2012 compared to $568

in 2011 Eaton expects approximately $700 in capital expenditures in 2013

Net cash used in investing activities decreased $212 to $800 in 2011 as compared to

$1012 in 2010 The decrease was principally
due to cash proceeds ot $103 from the

sale of short-term investments compared to purchases of $392 in 2010 partially off

set by higher capital expenditures in 2011 both of which were related to higher

liquidity requirements as the Company returned to growth from the depressed levels

of 2009 Investing
cash flow usage included $325 related to the acquisitions of busi

nesses the largest of which were Internormen Technology Group Begerow GmbH

Co KG and ACTOM Low Voltage

For additional information on business acquisitions see to Note to the Consoli

dated Financial Statements

Financing Cash Flow

Net cash
provided by financing activities was $548g in 2012 an increase of $5861

compared to use of cash of $381 in 2011 Substantially all of the increase in 2012 was

due to proceeds totaling $7.1 56 from the issuance of $4900 senior notes $1669 bor

rowing on the $6.75 billion capacity bridge facility
and the private issuance of $600

notes which are more fully described above Offsetting these increases were repay

ments on the bridge facility totaling $1000 and cash dividends paid totaling $512

Net cash used in financing activities was $381 in 2011 an increase of $120 compared

to use of cash of $261 in 2010 The increase was primarily due to share repurchases

of $343 in 2011 and an increase of $99 in cash dividends paid in 2011 to Eaton ordi

nary shareholders partially oftset by proceeds received from $300 debt issuance

completed by Eaton during 2011 Higher cash dividends paid was due to an increase

in the quarterly cash dividend paid per ordinary share from $1.08 to $1.36 per share

which was announced during the first quarter of 2011

Net-Debt-to-Capital Ratio

The net-debt-to-capital ratio was 39.2% at December 31 2012 compared to 26.5% at

December 31 2011 The increase reflected the combined effect during 2012 of the

$7060 increase in total debt and the $7617 increase in Eaton shareholders equity

all of which are primarily related to the acquisition of Cooper

Credit Ratings

Eatons debt has been assigned the following credit ratings

credit Rating Agency hung- /nhert-terrn rating Rating Ontlnnk

Standard Poors A-/A-2 Negative outlook

Moodys Baal/P-2 Negative outlook

Fitch BBB/F2 Negative outlook

Defined Benefits Plans

Pension Plans

During 2012 the fairvalue of plan assets in the Companys employee pension plans

increased $1202 to $3855 at December 31 2012 The increase in plan assets was pri

marily due to better than expected return on assets contributions in excess of benefit

payments and the
acquisition

of Cooper At December 31 2012 the net unfunded posi

tion of $1968 in pension liabilities consisted of $1016 in the U.S qualified pension

plans $883 in plans
that have no minimum

funding requirements and $140 in all other

plans that require minimum funding partially offset by $71 in plans that are overfunded

Funding requirements are major consideration in making contributions to Eatons

pension plans With respect to the Companys pension plans worldwide the Com

pany intends to contribute annually not less than the minimum required by applicable

law and regulations In 2012 $413 was contributed to the pension plans The Com

pany contributed $176 to the U.S Dualified Pension Plan in early 2013 and anticipates

making an additional $127 of contributions to certain other pension plans during 2013

The funded status of the Companys pension plans at the end of 2013 and future con

tributions will depend primarily on the actual return on assets during the year and the

discount rate used to calculate certain benefits at the end of the year Depending on

these factors and the resulting funded status of the pension plans the level of future

contributions could be materially higher or lower than in 2012

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Eaton does not have off-balance sheet arrangements or financings with unconsoli

dated entities or other persons In the ordinary course of business the Company

leases certain real properties and equipment as described in Note to the Consoli

dated Financial Statements

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted account

ing principles GAAP in the United States requires management to make certain esti

mates and assumptions that may involve the exercise of significant judgment For any

estimate or assumption used there may be other reasonable estimates or assumptions

that may have been used However based on facts and circumstances inherent in

developing estimates and assumptions management believes it is unlikely that apply

ing other such estimates and assumptions would have caused materially different

amounts to have been reported Actual results may differ from these estimates

Revenue Recognition

Sales of products are recognized when sales agreement is in place products have

been shipped to unaffiliated customers and title has transferred in accordance with

shipping terms the selling price is fixed and determinable and collectability is reason

ably assured all significant related acts of performance have been completed and no
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other significant uncertainties exist Shipping and handling costs billed to customers

are included in Net sales and the related costs in Cost of products sold Although the

majority of the sales agreements contain standard terms and conditions there are

also agreements that contain multiple elements or non-standard terms and conditions

As result judgment is required to determine the appropriate accounting including

whether the deliverables specified in these agreements should be treated as separate

units of accounting tor sales recognition purposes and if so how the sales price

should be allocated among the elements and when to
recognize

sales for each ele

ment For delivered elements sales are recognized only when the delivered elements

have standalone value fair values of undelivered elements are known there are no

uncertainties regarding customer acceptance and there are no customer-negotiated

retund or return rights affecting the sales recognized for delivered elements Sales for

service contracts are generally recognized as the services are provided

Eaton records reductions to revenue for customer and distributor incentives primarily

comprised of rebates at the time of the initial sale Rebates are estimated based on

sales terms historical experience trend analysis and projected market conditions in the

various markets served The rebate programs offered vary across businesses due to the

numerous markets Eaton serves but the most common incentives relate to amounts

paid or credited to customers for achieving defined volume levels or other objectives

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill and indefinite life
intangible assets are evaluated annually for impairment

as of July using either quantitative or qualitative analysis The Company per

forms quantitative analysis using
discounted cash flow model and other valuation

techniques but may elect to perform qualitative analysis qualitative analysis is

performed by assessing certain trends and factors including projected
market out

look and growth rates forecasted and actual sales and operating profit margins dis

count rates industry data and other relevant qualitative factors These trends and

factors are compared to and based on the assumptions used in the most recent

quantitative assessment Additionally goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets

are evaluated for impairmentwhenever events or circumstances indicate there may

be possible permanent loss of value

Goodwill is tested for impairment atthe reporting unit level which is equivalent to

Eatons operating segments and based on the net assets for each segment includ

ing goodwill and intangible assets Goodwill is assigned to each operating segment

as this represents the lowest level that constitutes business and for which dis

crete financial information is available and is the level which management regularly

reviews the operating results

Goodwill impairment testing for 2012 and 2011 was performed by assessing certain

qualitative
trends and factors as described above These trends and factors were

compared to and based on the assumptions used in the quantitative assessment

performed in 2010 For 2012 and 2011 it is more likely
than not that the fairvalue of

Eatons reporting units substantially exceeded the respective carrying amount

Indefinite life intangible assets primarily consist of trademarks The fair value of

these assets are determined
using royalty relief methodology similar to that

employed when the associated assets were acquired but using updated estimates

of future sales cash flows and
profitability

For 2012 and 2011 the fair value of indefi

nite lived intangible assets substantially exceeded the respective carrying
value

For additional information about goodwill and other intangible assets see Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Long-lived assets goodwill and indefinite life
intangible

assets are reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying

amount may not be recoverable Events or circumstances that may result in an

impairment review include operations reporting losses significant adverse change

in the use of an asset the planned disposal or sale of the asset significant adverse

change in the business climate or legal
factors related to the asset or significant

decrease in the estimated fair value of an asset Upon indications of impairment

assets and liabilities are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash

flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities The

asset group would be considered impaired when the estimated future net undis

counted cash flows generated by the asset group are less than its carrying value In

instances where the
carrying amount of the asset group exceeded the undiscounted

cash flows the fairvalue of the asset group would be determined and an impairment

loss would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value of the

asset group exceeds its fair value Determining asset groups and
underlying

cash

flows requires the use of significant judgment

Recoverability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Eaton is subject to the income tax laws in the
jurisdictions

in which it operates In

order to determine the income tax provision for financial statement purposes Eaton

must make significant estimates and judgments about its business operations in

these jurisdictions
These estimates and judgments are also used in determining the

deferred income tax assets and liabilities that have been recognized for differences

between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities and

income tax loss carryforwards and income tax credit carryforwards

Management evaluates the realizability of deferred income tax assets for each juris

diction in which it operates If the Company experiences cumulative
pretax

income in

particular jurisdiction in three-year period including the current and
prior two years

management normally concludes that the deferred income tax assets will more likely

than not be realizable and no valuation allowance is recognized unless known or

planned operating developments would lead management to conclude otherwise

However if the Company experiences cumulative
pretax

losses in particular jurisdic

tion in three-year period including the current and prior two years management then

considers series of factors in the determination of whether the deferred income tax

assets can be realized These factors include historical operating results known or

planned operating developments the period of time over which certain temporary dif

ferences will reverse consideration of the utilization of certain deferred income tax

liabilities tax law carryback capability
in particular country prudent and feasible tax

planning strategies
and estimates of future earnings and taxable income using the

same assumptions as the Companys goodwill
and other impairment testing After

evaluation of these factors if the deferred income tax assets are expected to be real

ized within the tax carryforward period allowed for that
specific country management

would conclude that no valuation allowance would be required To the extent that the

deferred income tax assets exceed the amount that is expected to be realized within

the tax carryforward period
for

particular jurisdiction management would establish

valuation allowance For additional information about income taxes see Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits Plans

The measurement of liabilities related to pension plans and other postretirement

benefits plans is based on several assumptions including
interest rates expected

return on plan assets rate of compensation increases and health care cost trend

rates Actual plan asset performance will either reduce or increase losses included

in accumulated other comprehensive loss which ultimately affects net income

The discount rate for United States plans was determined by discounting the

expected future benefit payments using
theoretical zero-coupon spot yield curve

derived from universe of high-quality bonds as of the measurement date and solv

ing for the single rate that generated the same benefit obligation Dnly corporate

bonds with rating of Aa or higher by either Moodys Investor Services or Standard

Poors were included Callable bonds and certain other non-comparable bonds

were eliminated Finally
subset of bonds was selected by grouping the universe of

bonds by duration and retaining 50% of the bonds that had the highestyields

The discount rates for non-United States plans were determined by region
and are

based on high quality long-term corporate and government bonds Consideration has

been given to the duration of the liabilities in each
plan

when
selecting

the bonds to

be used in determining the discount rate

Key assumptions used to calculate pension and other postretirement benefits expense

are adjusted at each year-end 1-percentage point change in the assumed rate of

return on pension plan assets is estimated to have approximately $38 effect on pen

sion expense Likewise 1-percentage point change in the discount rate is estimated

to have approximately $63 effect on pension expense Al-percentage point change

in the assumed rate of return on other postretirement benefits assets is estimated to

have approximately $1 effect on other postretirement benefits expense 1-per

centage point change in the discount rate is estimated to have approximately $4

effect on expense for other postretirement benefits plans Additional information

related to changes in key assumptions used to recognize expense for other postretire

ment benefits
plans

is found in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Environmental Contingencies

As result of past operations Eaton is involved in remedial response and voluntary

environmental remediation at number of sites including
certain of its currently-owned

or formerly-owned plants The Company has also been named potentially responsible

party under the United States federal Superfund law at number of disposal sites

number of factors affect the cost of environmental remediation including the num

ber of parties involved at particular site the determination of the extent of contam

ination the length of time the remediation may require the complexity of
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environmental regulations and the continuing advancement of remediation technol

ogy Taking these factors into account Eaton has estimated the costs of remediation

which will be incurred over period of years The Company accrues an amount on an

undiscounted basis consistent with the estimates of these costs when it is proba

ble that liability has been incurred At December 312012 and 2011 $125 and $62

was accrued for these costs

Based upon Eatons analysis and subject to the difficulty in estimating these future

costs the Company expects that any sum it may be required to pay in connection

with environmental matters is not reasonably possible to exceed the recorded liabil

ity by an amount that would have material effect on its financial position results of

operations or cash flows

Market Risk Disclosure

On regular basis Eaton monitors third-party depository institutions that hold its

cash and short-term investments primarily for safety of
principal

and secondarily

for maximizing yield on those funds The Company diversifies its cash and short-

term investments among counterparties to minimize exposure to any one of these

entities Eaton also monitors the creditworthiness of its customers and suppliers to

mitigate any adverse impact

Eaton uses derivative instruments to manage exposure to volatility in raw material

costs currency and interest rates on certain debt instruments Derivative financial

instruments used by the Company are straightforward and non-leveraged The coun

terparties to these instruments are financial institutions with strong credit ratings

Eaton maintains control over the size of positions
entered into with any one counter-

party
and

regularly
monitors the credit rating of these institutions See Note 12 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about hedges and

derivative financial instruments

Eatons ability to access the commercial paper market and the related cost of these

borrowings is based on the strength of its credit rating and overall market condi

tions The Company has not experienced any material limitations in its ability to

access these sources of liquidity At December 31 2012 Eaton had $2000 of long-

term revolving credit facilities with banks in support of its commercial paper pro

gram It has no direct borrowings outstanding under these creditfacilities Eatons

non-United States operations also had available short-term lines of credit of approxi

mately $2099 at December 31 2012

Interest rate risk can be measured by calculating the short-term earnings impact that

would result from adverse changes in interest rates This exposure results from

short-term debt which includes commercial paper at floating interest rate long-

term debt that has been swapped to floating rates and money market investments

that have not been swapped to fixed rates Based upon the balances of investments

and
floating

rate debt at year end 2012 100 basis-point increase in short-term inter

est rates would have increased the Companys net pretax interest expense by $15

Eaton also measures interest rate risk by estimating the net amount by which the fair

value of the Companys financial liabilities would change as result of movements in

interest rates Based on Eatons best estimate for hypothetical 100 basis point

decrease in interest rates at December 312012 the market value of the Companys

debt and interest rate swap portfolio in aggregate would increase by $779

Currency risk is the risk of economic losses due to adverse changes in exchange rates

The Company mitigates currency risk by funding some investments in certain markets

through local currency financings
Non-United States dollar debt was $148 at Decem

ber 312012 To augment Eatons non-United States dollar debt portfolio the Company

also enters into forward exchange contracts and currency swaps from time to time to

mitigate
the risk of economic loss in its investments At December 312012 the aggre

gate balance of such contracts was $599 Eaton also monitors exposure to transac

tions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each country in

which the Company operates and
regularly

enters into forward contracts to mitigate

that exposure In the aggregate Eatons portfolio of forward contracts related to such

transactions was not material to its Consolidated Financial Statements

Long-termdebU1 314 $1576 $1812 $6084 $9766

Interest expense related to

long-term debt 371 683 607 2653 4314

Reduction of interest expense from

interest rate swap agreements

related to long-term debt 1341 1541 1351 1691 921

Operating leases 174 238 132 85 629

Purchaseobligations
849 95 78 86 1109

Other long-term obligations 309 12 13 74 408

Total $1983 $2550 $2607 $8913 $16053

WLnsg-term debt encludes deferred gains and lnsses on derivatives related to debt adjustments ts

fair market value and premiums and discnunts nn lsng-term debentures

Interest expense related to long-term debt is based on the fixed interest rate or

other
applicable

interest rate related to the debt instrument The reduction of inter

est expense due to interest rate swap agreements related to long-term debt is based

on the difference in the fixed interest rate the Company receives from the swap

compared to the floating interest rate the Company pays on the swap Purchase obli

gations are entered into with various vendors in the normal course of business

These amounts include commitments for purchases of raw materials outstanding

non-cancelable purchase orders releases under blanket purchase orders and com

mitments under ongoing service arrangements Other long-term obligations princi

pally include anticipated contributions of $303 to pension plans in 2013 and $101 of

deferred compensation earned under various plans for which the participants have

elected to receive disbursement at later date

The table above does not include future expected pension benefit payments or

expected other postretirement benefits payments Information related to the amounts

of these future payments is described in Note to the Consolidated Financial State

ments The table above also excludes the liabilityfor unrecognized income tax benefits

since the Company cannot predict with reasonable certainty
the

timing
of cash settle

ments with the respective taxing authorities At December 312012 the
gross liability

for unrecognized income tan benefits totaled $290 and interest and penalties were $34

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report to Shareholders contains
forward-looking

statements concerning

Eatons full
year

2013 sales the performance in 2013 of its worldwide end markets and

Eatons 2013 growth in relation to end markets among other matters These state

ments may discuss goals intentions and expectations as to future trends plans events

results of operations or financial condition or state other information relating to Eaton

based on current beliefs of management as well as assumptions made by and informa

tion currently
available to management Forward-looking statements generally will be

accompanied by words such as anticipate believe could estimate expect

forecast guidance intend may possible potential predict project or

ether similar words phrases or expressions These statements should be used with

caution and are subject to various risks and uncertainties many of which are outside

Eatons control The following factors could cause actual results to differ materially

from those in the
forward-looking

statements unanticipated changes in the markets

for the Companys business segments unanticipated downturns in business relation

ships
with customers or their purchases from us the availability of credit to customers

and suppliers competitive pressures on sales and pricing increases in the cost of

material and other production costs or unexpected costs that cannot be recouped in

product pricing the introduction of competing technologies unexpected technical or

marketing difficulties unexpected claims charges litigation or dispute resolutions

strikes or other labor unrest the impact of acquisitions and divestitures unanticipated

difficulties
integrating acquisitions new laws and governmental regulations interest

rate changes tax rate changes or exposure to additional income tax liability
stock

market and
currency tuctuations and unanticipated deterioration of economic and

financial conditions in the United States and around the world Eaton does not assume

any obligation
to update these forward-looking statements

Contractual Obligations

summary of contractual obligations as of December 31 2012 follows

2t14 2016

ru tu

2013 2t15 2017

Alter

2017 Tntal
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Quarterly Data unaudited

Quarter ended in 2012 Quarter ended in 2011

Dec.31 Sept.30 June30 Mar.31 Dec 31 Sept 30 June30 Mar 31

In nnillions except for per share data

Net sales 4333 3950 4068 3960 4033 4123 4090 3803

Grossprofit 1201 1203 1253 1206 1216 1223 1228 1121

Percent of net sales 27.7% 30.5% 30.8% 30.5% 30.2% 29.7% 30.0% 29.5%

Income before incometaxes 88 376 419 368 390 432 396 335

Net income 180 347 382 311 361 367 338 286

Adjustment for net income loss for

noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Eaton

ordinary shareholders 179 345 382 311 362 365 336 287

Net income
per ordinary share

Diluted 0.46 1.02 1.12 0.91 1.07 1.07 0.97 0.83

Basic 0.47 1.02 1.13 0.93 1.08 1.07 0.99 0.84

Cashdividendsdeclaredperordinaryshare 0.76 0.38 0.38 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34

Market price per ordinary
share

High 54.75 49.18 50.29 53.06 47.44 53.23 56.42 56.49

Low 44.36 36.38 36.94 44.73 33.09 33.97 45.79 48.57

Earnings per share for the four quarters
in

year may not equal full year earnings per share

Significant non-recurring adjustments included in Income before income taxes are as follows

Quarter ended in 2012 Quarter ended in 2011

Dec.31 Sept.30 June30 Mar.31 Dec 31 Sept 30 June30 Mar 31

In millions

Acquisition integration charges 24

Transactioncosts 152 19
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Ten-Year Consolidated Financial Summaryunaudited

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

In millions except for per share data

Continuing operations

Netsales 16311 16049 $13715 11873 $15376 13033 12232 10874 9547 7796

Incomebeforeincometaxes 1251 1553 1036 303 1140 1055 979 969 756 475

Income after income taxes 1220 1352 937 385 1067 973 907 788 633 368

Income from discontinued operations 35 53 22 22 30

Netincome 1220 1352 937 385 1070 1008 960 810 655 398

Less net incomefor noncontrolling interests 12 14 10 12

Net income attributable to

Eaton ordinary shareholders 1217 1350 929 383 1058 994 950 805 648 386

Net income per ordinary share diluted

Continuingoperations 3.46 3.93 2.73 1.14 3.25 3.19 2.94 2.54 2.00 1.18

Discontinuedoperations 0.01 0.12 0.17 0.08 0.07 0.10

Total 3.46 3.93 2.73 1.14 3.26 3.31 3.11 2.62 2.07 1.28

Net income per ordinary share basic

Continuingoperations 3.54 3.98 2.76 1.16 3.29 3.26 2.99 2.61 2.05 1.20

Discontinuedoperations 0.01 0.12 0.17 0.07 0.07 0.11

Total 3.54 3.98 2.76 1.16 3.30 3.38 3.16 2.68 2.12 1.31

Weighted-average number of ordinary

shares outstanding

Diluted 350.9 342.8 339.5 335.8 324.6 300.6 305.8 308.0 314.2 301.0

Basic 347.8 338.3 335.5 332.7 320.4 294.6 300.4 300.4 306.2 295.8

Cash dividends declared per ordinary share 1.52 1.36 1.08 1.00 1.00 0.86 0.74 0.62 0.54 0.46

Total assets 35848 17873 17252 16282 16655 13430 11417 10218 9075 8223

Long-termdebt 9762 3366 3382 3349 3190 2432 1774 1830 1734 1651

Total debt 10833 3773 3458 3467 4271 3417 2586 2464 1773 1953

Eatonshareholdersequity 15086 7469 7362 6777 6317 5172 4106 3778 3606 3117

Eatonshareholdersequityperordinaryshare 32.05 22.34 21.66 20.39 19.14 17.71 14.04 12.72 11.76 10.19

Ordinary shares outstanding 470.7 334.4 339.9 332.3 330.0 292.0 292.6 297.0 306.6 306.0
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Directors and Leadership Team

As of March 12013

Directors Eaton Corporation plc

George Barrett13

Chairman and Chief Execotive Officer

Cardinal Health Columbus Ohio

health care services company

Todd Bluedorn24

Chief Executive Officer Lennox

International Inc Richardson Texas

global provider of climate control

solutions for heating air conditioning

and
refrigeration

markets

Christopher Connor24

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Sherwin-Williams Company

Cleveland Ohio global manufacturer

of paint architectural coatings industrial

finishes and associated supplies

Michael Critelli
13

Chief Executive Officer and President

Dossia Services Corporation San

Francisco California personal health

management systems company

Alexander Cutler5

Chairman Eaton Corporation plc Dublin

Ireland diversifiad power management

company

Charles Golden13

Retired Former Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer and Director

Eli Lilly and Company Indianapolis Indiana

pharmaceutical company

LindaA Hill
24

Professor of Business Administration

Harvard Business School Cambridge

Massachusetts

Arthur Johnson14

Retired Former Senior Vice President

Corporate Strategic Development

Lockheed Martin Corporation Bethesda

Maryland manufacturer of advanced

technology systems products and services

Ned Lautenbach24

Retired Former Partner Clayton Oubilier

Ricelnc NewYorkN.Y.aprivate

equity investment firm specializing in

management buyouts

Deborah McCoy23

Independent consultant FormerSenior

Vice President Flight Operations

Continental Airlines Inc Houston Texas

commercial airline

GregoryR Page4

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Cargill Incorporated Minneapolis

Minnesota an international marketer

processor and distributor of
agricultural

food financial and industrial products

and services

Gerald Smith
13

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Smith Graham Company Houston Teoas

an investment advisory firm

Board Committees

Each of the non-employee directors serves four-month term on the Eoecutive Committee Aleuander Cutler serves 12-month term as Committee Chair

January 2Ol2through April26 2ol2through Sapeambar 12012 through January 2Ol3through

April 252012 Auguat3l 2012 Dacambar 312012 April 242013

Golden Barrett Connor Golden

McCoy Bluedorn Johnson McCoy

L.Tooker Critelli Lautenbach Page

Eaton Global Leadership Team

Audit Committee

Compensation and Organization Committee

Finance Committee

Governance Committee

Execative Committee

Denotes Committee Chair

Alexander Cutler

Chief Executive Officer and President

Craig Arnold

Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

Industrial Sector

Richard Fearon

Vice Chairman and Chief Financial and

Planning Officer

Thomas S.Gross

Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer

Electrical Sector

Revathi Advaithi

PresidentAmericas Region Electrical

Frank Campbell

PresidentEurope Middle East and Africa

Region Electrical

Kenneth Davis

PresidentVehicle Group

Ivo Jurek

PresidentAsia Pacific Region Electrical

William VanArsdale

PresidentHydraulics Group

UdayYadav

PresidentAerospace Group

William Blausey Jr

Senior Vice President and Chief Information

Officer

Steven Boccadoro

Senior Vice PresidentSales and

Marketing

Cynthie Brabander

Executive Vice President and Chief Human

Resources Officer

Donald Bullock

Senior Vice PresidentInvestor Relafions

William Doggett

Senior Vice PresidentPublic and

Community Affairs

Curtis Hutchins

PresidentAsia Pacific Region Eaton

Harold Jones

Senior Vice PresidentEnvironment

Health and Safety

Nanda Kumar

Executive Vice PresidentEaton Business

System

John Matejka

Senior Vice PresidentInternal Audit

Donald McGrath Jr

Senior Vice PresidentCommunications

Mark McGuire

Executive Vice President and General

Counsel

Trent Meyerhoefer

Senior Vice PresidentTreasury

John Mitchell

Senior Vice PresidentTaxes

Thomas

Senior Vice President and Secretary

Barbara ODell

Senior Vice PresidentCorporate Duality

Pavan Pattade

Senior Vice PresidentSupply Chain

Management

Ramanath Ramakrishnan

Executive Vice President and Chief

Technology Officer

Billie Rawot

Senior Vice President and Controller

Deborah Severs

Senior Vice PresidentGlobal Ethics and

Compliance

Yannis Tsavalas

President Europe Middle East and Africa

Region Eaton

Officer of Eaton Corporation plc Other leaders are officers of various Eaton affiliates
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Shareholder Information

Eaton Shareholder Investor Relations Eaton 1000 Eaton Boulevard Cleveland OH 44122 USA

Contact Information 888.328.6647 440.523.5000 www.eaton.com

Annual General Meeting The companys 2013 annual general meeting of shareholders will be held at am Greenwich Mean

of Shareholders Time am in Ireland on Wednesday April 24 2013 atthe Westin Dublin Westmoreland Street

Dublin Ireland Formal notice otthe meeting proxy statement and proxyform will be mailed on or about

March 15 2013 to each shareholder of record as of February 25 2013

Eaton shareholders can registerfor electronic delivery of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report to

Shareholders as well as online proxy voting at http//enroll.icsdelivery.com/etri

Annual Report on Form 10-K Any shareholder may obtain at no charge copy of Eatons Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2012 as

and Other Financial Reports filed with the Securities arid Exchange Commission upon written requestto the address shown above

The Annual Report on Form 10-K and other public financial reports also are available on Eatons website

at www.eaton.com

Annual Certifications The most recent certifications reqLlired by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 were filed

as Exhibits3l.1 arid 31.2to Eatons Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2012 Additionally Eaton submitted

to the New York Stock Exchange its 2012 Chief Executive Officer Certification regarding Eatons

compliance with the corporate governance listing standards of the Exchange

Quarterly Financial Releases Eatonsfinancial results are available approximately three weeks after the end of each quarter

Releases are available on Eatons website atwww.eaton.com Copies may also be obtained by calling

440.523.4254

Common Shares Listed fortrading New York Stock Exchange Ticker Symbol ETN

Annual Reportto Shareholders Eatons 2012 Annual Reportto Shareholders is available online atwww.eaton.com/annualreport

Transfer Agent Registrar Computershare Shareowner Services

Dividend Disbursement Agent First Class/Registered Mail P.O Box 43006 Providence RI 02940-3006

and Dividend Reinvestment Courier Packages 250 RoyalI Street Canton MA 02021

Agent Toll-free 1888.597.8625 312.588.4141 outside the U.S

TDD 800.952.9245 hearing impaired inside the U.S TOO 1781.575.4592 hearing impaired outside

the U.S Computershare may also be contacted via its website atwww.computershare.com/investor

Dividend Reinvestment and dividend reinvestment plan is available at no charge to shareholders of record of Eaton Ordinary

Direct Stock Purchase Plan Shares Through the plan shareholders of record may buy additional shares by reinvesting their

cash dividends or investing additional cash up to $60000 per year Also new investors may buy

Eaton shares Linderthis plan Interested shareholders of record or new investors should contact

Computershare as shown above

Direct Deposit of Dividends Shareholders of record may have their dividends directly deposited to their bank accounts Interested

shareholders of record should contact Computershare as shown above

Charitable Contributions report of Eatons charitable contributions is available on Eatons website at www.eaton.com
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